
FINANCIAL ADVISOR SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of June 12, 2017, by and among MUNICIPAL FINANCE 
SERVICES, INC. (“MFSOK”) and INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 1, LOGAN 
COUNTY, OKLAHOMA (Guthrie Board of Education), Guthrie, Oklahoma (the “District” or the “School 
District”). 

RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the District desires to engage MFSOK as financial advisor to render on-going 

financial advice to the School District on certain financial matters; and  

WHEREAS, MFSOK has demonstrated the necessary professional capabilities, experience and 
resources to provide financial advisory services required by the District as outlined herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the District and MFSOK, in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, do hereby agree as follows: 

AGREEMENTS 

I. Scope of Services. 

MFSOK will render the following services as financial advisor to the District: 

A. Assist in the School District’s annual budget by providing projections of current 
and future debt service requirements and tax levies required to adequately repay any 
outstanding indebtedness.     

B. Work with the School District to develop a long-term, comprehensive financing 
plan which will sufficiently fund major capital improvements identified by the 
School District.  Assist in developing information to be presented to local voters 
prior to the election related to the approval of the proposed bonds.  Such assistance 
would include, but not be limited to, the preparation of brochures/pamphlets for 
distribution to the public; providing information to local media groups; 
presentations to local civic organizations and other assistance as directed by the 
School District. 

175175



C. Conduct special studies as directed by the School District to assess innovative 
financing techniques required to fund proposed projects. 

D. Analyze the issuance of General Obligation Bonds to finance specific 
improvements and recommended a financing structure which will limit as much as 
possible the total indebtedness incurred by the School District.   

E. Upon passage of the bond issue and for each series of bonds to be issued, the 
Financial Advisor will assist Bond Counsel and the School District in the 
preparation of all necessary documents to sell the bonds in a timely manner.  Any 
such services provided by MFSOK with regard to the preparation of any documents 
or advice in connection with such offerings does not constitute legal advice or legal 
services and does not substitute for the School District’s obligation to seek and 
consult with such legal advisors as they may deem appropriate and necessary to 
ensure that the School District is in compliance with all applicable laws and 
regulations.  In this regard, MFSOK’s services are strictly limited to updating pre-
existing offering documents, compilation of content that may be required and/ or as 
provided by the School District’s financial management prepared with the 
assistance of the School District’s staff and legal counsel.  Such services would 
include: 

(i) Prepare all election documents in accordance with forms prescribed by 
the Oklahoma Attorney General necessary to call and hold an election required to 
obtain voter approval of any financing vehicle for the review and approval of the 
legal counsel that regularly advises the School District;  

 (ii)  Assist in the School District’s preparation of a Preliminary and Final 
Official Statement for any future financings which will be based on the Official 
Statements utilized in prior School District offerings.  Such documents will be 
submitted in a timely manner to the School District staff and Board who are solely 
responsible for the accuracy of the content set forth in any Official Statement for 
their preliminary and final review and approval prior to final printing and 
distribution; 

  (iii) Prepare a Notice of Sale and Instructions to Bidders in advance of 
competitive sale of the bonds, providing information on the bidding procedures 
and the manner in which the bonds would be awarded to the successful bidder.  
Such document would be distributed to potential purchasers in a timely manner to 
ensure adequate review and consideration prior to the actual sale and date; 

 (iv) Assist the School District’s staff in obtaining appropriate ratings and/or 
credit enhancement for the bonds, if deemed economically beneficial;  

  (v) Advise the School District along with any legal counsel that might be 
consulted as to the amount and timing of any obligations to take advantage of any 
rebate exceptions available to municipal issuers and the ability to issue “bank 
qualified” obligations, if any; 

176176



(vi) Submit all necessary documents to School District officials in a timely 
manner for review and comment prior to consideration by the Board of Education; 

(vii) Oversee with the School District’s financial management the actual sale 
of bonds and advise the School District on the adequacy of the rates received;  

(viii) Prepare a written report after the sale containing a summary of the 
transaction, comparative sale data, an evaluation of market conditions and other 
pertinent data to enable the School District to quantitatively assess the results of 
the sale;  

(ix) Prepare the Transcript of Proceedings for the School District’s legal 
counsel review for submission to the Oklahoma Attorney General for review and 
approval; 

(x) Coordinate the bond closing with the purchaser of the bonds, School 
District officials and Bond Counsel to ensure timely receipt of the bond proceeds; 

F. Attend meetings of the School District as needed.  

G. Remain fully accessible to any information requests or other related needs of the 
School District. 

MFSOK’s services are limited to those specifically set forth herein.   

II. Compensation and Reimbursements 

A. Compensation for Financial Advisor Services.  For services as financial advisor to 
the District.  MFSOK shall be paid at the time of issuance, a fee based on ½ of 1% 
of the par amount of each series of bonds issued; provided that, the minimum fee 
for each series of bonds shall be $17,500.00. 

B. Expenses.  MFSOK shall also be paid a fixed amount of $2,000.00 per each issue 
of bonds to cover expenses incurred as part of the transaction, provided that any 
filing, publication, recording or printing costs or similar third party costs such as 
rating or credit enhancement fees, Attorney General Bond Examination fees, 
registrar-paying agent fees, bond counsel fees, official statement printing and the 
cost of holding an election or other costs related thereto, are additional costs that 
shall be paid directly by the District. 

C. Payment and Contingency.   Fees and expenses shall be payable by District at the 
time of issuance of the Bonds.  Payment for all fees and expenses hereunder shall 
be made at closing from proceeds of the Bonds or from other available funds of 
the District and shall be contingent upon issuance of the Bonds, except for 
publication costs associated with the election. 

  

177177



III. Term, Termination and Successors 

A. Term of Agreement.  Unless otherwise terminated as provided herein, this 
Agreement shall be in force and effect for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018, and 
may be renewed for successive fiscal years beginning July 1 and ending June 30 
upon mutual consent of both parties. 

B. Termination of Agreement and Services.  This Agreement and all financial advisor 
services to be rendered hereunder may be terminated at any time by written notice 
from either party, with or without cause.  In that event, all finished and unfinished 
documents prepared for the District, shall, at the option of District, become its 
property and shall be delivered to it or any party it may designate, provided that 
MFSOK shall have no liability whatsoever for any subsequent use of such 
documents.   

C. Successors and Assigns.  MFSOK may not assign its obligations under this 
Agreement without the written consent of District except to a successor partnership 
or corporation to which all or substantially all of the assets and operations of 
MFSOK are transferred.  District may assign its rights and obligations under this 
Agreement to (but only to) any other public entity that issues the Bonds (if not the 
District). District shall not otherwise assign its rights and obligations under this 
Agreement without written consent of MFSOK.  All references to MFSOK and 
District in this Agreement shall be deemed to refer to any successor of MFSOK and 
to any such assignee of District and shall bind and inure to the benefit of such 
successor and assignee whether so expressed or not. 

IV. Municipal Advisor Registration and Acknowledgement 

District hereby acknowledges that MFSOK is registered as a Municipal Advisor pursuant to 
applicable Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
(“MSRB”) rules and regulations.  District further acknowledges receipt of MFSOK’s Form ADV Part 
2A Brochure and 2B Brochure Supplements as required by the SEC and Oklahoma Department of 
Securities prior to entering into this Agreement. 

V. Conflict of Interest Statement 

As of the date of this agreement, MFSOK has performed a reasonable diligence to determine 
if there are any conflicts of interest that should be brought to the attention of the District.  During the 
diligence process, MFSOK has determined that no material conflict of interest has been identified. 

Since the compensation arrangement included in Section II includes a component that is based 
on the completion of a transaction, this may be viewed as a conflict of interest regarding our ability to 
provide unbiased advice to enter into such transaction. This viewed conflict of interest will not impair 
MFSOK’s ability to render unbiased and competent advice to the District. The fee paid to MFSOK 
increases the cost of borrowing to the District.  The increased cost occurs from compensating MFSOK 
for municipal advisory services provided. 

178178



If MFSOK becomes aware of any actual or potential conflict of interest not mentioned above 
during this agreement, MFSOK will promptly provide the District a supplement written disclosure with 
sufficient details of the change, if any, which will allow the District to evaluate the situation. 

VI. Legal Events and Disciplinary History 

MFSOK does not have any legal events and disciplinary history on its Form MA and Form 
MA-I, which includes information about any criminal actions, regulatory actions, investigations, 
terminations, judgments, liens, civil judicial actions, customer complaints, arbitrations and civil 
litigation.  The District may electronically access MFSOK’s most recent Form MA and each most 
recent Form MA-I filed with the Commission at the following website: 

  

www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.html. 

There have been no material changes to a legal or disciplinary event disclosure on any Form 
MA or Form MA-I filed with the SEC. 

VII. Fiduciary Duty 

MFSOK is registered as a Municipal Advisor with the SEC and Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”).  As such, MFSOK has a Fiduciary duty to the District and must provide 
both a Duty of Care and a Duty of Loyalty that entails the following. 

Duty of Care: 

A. exercise due care in performing its municipal advisory activities; 
B. possess the degree of knowledge and expertise needed to provide the District with 

informed advice; 
C. make a reasonable inquiry as to the facts that are relevant to the District’s determination 

as to whether to proceed with a course of action or that form the basis for any advice 
provided to the District; and 

D. undertake a reasonable investigation to determine that MFSOK is not forming any 
recommendation on materially inaccurate or incomplete information; MFSOK must 
have a reasonable basis for: 

a. any advice provided to or on behalf of the District; 
b. any representations made in a certificate that it signs that will be reasonably 

foreseeably relied upon by the District, any other party involved in the 
municipal securities transaction or municipal financial product, or investors in 
the District securities; and 

c. any information provided to the District or other parties involved in the 
municipal securities transaction in connection with the preparation of an 
official statement. 

  

179179

http://www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.html


Duty of Loyalty: 

MFSOK must deal honestly and with the utmost good faith with the District and act in the 
District’s best interests without regard to the financial or other interests of MFSOK.  MFSOK will 
eliminate or provide full and fair disclosure (included herein) to District about each material conflict of 
interest (as applicable).  MFSOK will not engage in municipal advisory activities with the District as a 
municipal entity, if it cannot manage or mitigate its conflicts in a manner that will permit it to act in the 
District’s best interests.  As of the date of this agreement, MFSOK has performed a reasonable diligence 
to determine if there are any conflicts of interest that should be brought to the attention of the District. 

VIII. Recommendations 

If MFSOK makes a recommendation of a municipal securities transaction or municipal 
financial product or if the review of a recommendation of another party is requested in writing by the 
District and is within the scope of the engagement, MFSOK will determine, based on the information 
obtained through reasonable diligence of MFSOK whether a municipal securities transaction or 
municipal financial product is suitable for the District.  In addition, MFSOK will inform the District of:   

A. the evaluation of the material risks, potential benefits, structure, and other 
characteristics of the recommendation; 

B. the basis upon which MFSOK reasonably believes that the recommended municipal 
securities transaction or municipal financial product is, or is not, suitable for the 
District; and 

C. whether MFSOK has investigated or considered other reasonably feasible alternatives 
to the recommendation that might also or alternatively serve the District’s objectives. 

If the District elects a course of action that is independent of or contrary to the advice provided 
by MFSOK, MFSOK is not required on that basis to disengage from the District. 

IX. Record Retention 

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) record retention regulations, 
Municipal Finance Services, Inc. is required to maintain in writing, all communication and created 
documents between Municipal Finance Services, Inc. and the School District for five (5) years after the 
maturity of any obligation. 

 

[Remainder of This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

  

180180



X. Notices 

Any and all notices pertaining to this Agreement shall be sent by U.S. Postal Service, first class, 
postage prepaid to: 

 
MFSOK: 
 
Municipal Finance Services, Inc. 
Attn:  Jon Wolff, Vice President 
P.O. Box 747 
Edmond, OK 73083-0747 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT: 
 
Independent School District Number 1  
Logan County, Oklahoma 
Attn:  Superintendent 
802 E. Vilas 
Guthrie, OK 73044 

 

 

 

[The Remainder of This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

  

181181



Acceptance 
 

If there are any questions regarding the above, please do not hesitate to contact Municipal Finance 
Services, Inc.  If the foregoing terms meet with your approval, please indicate your acceptance by executing 
all original copies of this letter and keeping one copy for your file. 

 
The District and MFSOK have executed this Agreement by the duly authorized representatives as 

of the date provided hereof and such Agreement was approved at a meeting on June 12, 2017 duly called 
and held in full compliance with the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act. 

 
 
 

      MUNICIPAL FINANCE SERVICES, INC. 

 
 
 
     By:        
           Rick A. Smith, President 
 
 

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 1 
LOGAN COUNTY, OKLAHOMA (GUTHRIE BOARD 
OF EDUCATION)  

 
 
 

     By:        
            Title:  President, Board of Education 
      

 

ATTEST: 

 

       
Clerk, Board of Education 

 

(SEAL) 

182182



183183



184184



185185



186186



187187



188188



189189



190190



 APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL 

 OF TEMPORARY APPROPRIATIONS 

 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR OF 2017-18 

 

BE IT RESOLVED: that, in accordance with the provisions of 68 O.S., Section 3020, the County Excise 

Board is respectfully requested to approve the temporary appropriations listed below for the funds of the 

hereinafter named school district.  It is certified that the amounts so requested do not exceed 100% of the 

School's Estimate of Needs for 2017-18: 

 

General Fund 

Current Expense       $ 20,000,000             

 

Building Fund 

Erecting, remodeling or repairing 

school buildings and purchase of  

furniture        $       950,000  

 

Child Nutrition Fund 

Current Expense       $    1,000,000  

 

School Age Care Fund 

Current Expense       $        50,000  

 

Gifts & Endowments Fund 

Current Expense       $        10,000  

 

Insurance/Casualty Fund 

Current Expense       $        35,000  

 

Approved this               day of                                                 , 2017. 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF GUTHRIE, 

#I-1, LOGAN COUNTY, OKLAHOMA 

ATTEST: 

                                                                

CLERK      PRESIDENT 

                                                                                                                                    

 COUNTY EXCISE BOARD 

 

APPROVED BY THE                                                    COUNTY EXCISE BOARD 

 

THIS                 DAY OF                                         , 2017. 

 

ATTEST: 

                                                            

CHAIRMAN 

                                                            

MEMBER                                                  

 

                                                                   

SECRETARY OF COUNTY    MEMBER 

EXCISE BOARD 191191



LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this 12th day of June, 2017, by and 
between INDEPEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 OF LOGAN COUNTY, 
OKLAHOMA (the “Lessor”) and NORTHchurch, Inc. (the “Lessee”). 
 
RECITALS: 
 
 Lessor is the owner of the Guthrie Upper Elementary School gymnasium and facilities 
located at 1615 N. Walnut, Guthrie, Oklahoma (the “Facilities”).  Lessee desires to lease a 
portion of the Facilities for church meetings. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein 
contained and intending to be legally bound, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. LEASE OF PREMISES.  In consideration of the rentals and upon the terms and 
conditions hereinafter stated, Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from 
Lessor, the following areas of the School on each Sunday and Wednesday for the duration and at 
the rates set forth below:    

July 1, 2017-June 30, 2018 – Sundays, 7:30 a.m. to noon (4.5 hours) 
 
Gymnasium   $152.50 
Choir Room   $  67.50 
Custodian   $  67.50 
Total    $287.50 
 
July 1, 2017-June 30, 2018 – Wednesdays, 5:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. (4.0 hours) 
 
Gymnasium   $135.00 
Choir Room   $  60.00 
Custodian   $  60.00 
Total    $255.00 

 
(the “Leased Premises”). 
 

2. TERM.  The term (“Term”) of this Agreement is for a period from July 1, 2017, 
to June 30, 2018, unless this Agreement is terminated at an earlier date, as stated herein. 

 
3. RENTAL.  For the use and possession of the Leased Premises during the Term, 

Lessee agrees to pay Lessor the rental charges set forth above, one month in advance, 
commencing July 1, 2017.  Lessee will be deemed to have used the Leased Premises on each 
Sunday unless Lessee gives Lessor at least two (2) weeks’ advance notice of Lessee’s intended 
non-use on any reserved Sunday.  If the notice is properly given, Lessee’s rental for the 
applicable month will be reduced by a pro-rated amount.  Otherwise, Lessee will be charged for 
the rental as if the Leased Premises were used.  The monthly rental payment is due on the first 

192192



(1st) day of each month for all scheduled uses during that month and will be delinquent if the full 
monthly rental is not received by Lessor on or before the tenth (10th) day of each month.  In the 
event any rental payment is not made by the tenth (10th) day of the month, Lessor shall have the 
right to terminate this Agreement and Lessee's right to use and occupy the Leased Premises 
without any further notice or demand, statutory or otherwise, all of which are waived by Lessee.  
All rentals shall be paid in advance without deduction or offset.  Lessor shall be entitled to a "late 
charge" of five percent (5%) of the amount of any rental installment which is not paid on or 
before the delinquent date as a condition to reinstatement of this Agreement, which reinstatement 
shall be at Lessor's sole option.  If Lessor elects to terminate this Agreement, the unpaid rental 
shall bear interest as herein provided and the "late charge" shall not be applicable.  In the event 
any rental is paid by a check which is returned for any reason, Lessor shall have the right, by 
written notice to Lessee, to require that future rental installments be paid by cashier's check. 

 
4. USE.  The Leased Premises will be used by Lessee for religious meetings and 

services and for no other purpose.  Lessee agrees that its use of the Leased Premises will be full 
and strict compliance with the requirements of applicable state, municipal and federal laws, rules 
and regulations.  In the event Lessor determines that Lessee is not complying with the provisions 
of this Agreement concerning the nature and character of its use, Lessor shall give Lessee written 
notice.  If Lessee fails to correct deficiencies in the operation within ten (10) days after receipt of 
Lessor's notice, Lessor shall have the right to terminate this Agreement.  If Lessee violates any 
applicable provision of any state, municipal or federal law, rule or regulation governing its use of 
the Leased Premises, Lessor shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately and 
without notice to Lessee. 

 
5. CODE COMPLIANCE.  Lessee shall not use the Leased Premises in any manner 

which would constitute a change in use or occupancy, as that term is defined in the current 
edition of the International Building Code (the “Code”).  In the event Lessee is required to have a 
license or a Certificate of Occupancy from any state or local regulatory agency as a condition to 
Lessee’s use and occupancy of the Leased Premises, the cancellation, suspension, revocation or 
surrender of the license or the failure to obtain a Certificate of Occupancy shall constitute a basis 
for immediate termination of this Agreement by the Lessor. 

 
6. HOURS.  The Leased Premises will be used during the hours set forth in Section 

1, above.  Hours of use may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties. 
 
7. UTILITIES AND CUSTODIAL SERVICES.  The Lessor agrees to provide the 

following services to the Leased Premises:   water, heat, air conditioning (but only if the Leased 
Premises are air conditioned); sewer and electric.  Custodial services will be provided by Lessor 
at the rates set forth in Section 1, above. 

 
8. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.  Lessee agrees to reimburse Lessor for the cost of 

any services provided by Lessor in addition to those described above.  Lessor will invoice Lessee 
for the cost of any additional services, which shall be paid by Lessee as additional rent due and 
payable with the next regularly scheduled payment of rental in accordance with the provisions of 
paragraph 3 above. 

 

193193



9. IMPROVEMENTS TO LEASED PREMISES.  Lessor shall have no obligation to 
make any improvements or to remodel, repair, alter, decorate, paint or perform any other work of 
any nature to make the Leased Premises ready for Lessee’s use.  Lessee has inspected the Leased 
Premises and accepts the same in its present condition. 

 
10. ACCESS TO OTHER AREAS OF SCHOOL BUILDING AND GROUNDS.  

Lessee shall have no right of access to, or use of, other areas of the building or the grounds, 
except halls and restrooms. 

 
11. INDEMNITY.  Lessee agrees to indemnify and hold Lessor harmless of and from 

all claims, demands, actions and proceedings asserted against Lessor arising out of Lessee's use 
of the Leased Premises, except to the extent that such claims, demands, actions and proceedings 
are the result of the negligence or wrongful act of the Lessor or its agents or employees.  This 
indemnity shall include defense costs and attorney's fees except to the extent Lessor and its 
employees are responsible for any loss. 

 
12. NOTICES.  Any notices required or contemplated under this Agreement shall be 

addressed to the parties as follows: 
 
 If to Lessor: 
 

Ms. Michelle Chapple, Executive Director of Finance 
Guthrie Public Schools 
802 East Vilas 
Guthrie, OK 73044 
 

 If to Lessee: 
 
 Mr. Clint Smith, Executive Director of Ministry 
 NORTHchurch, Inc. 
 PO Box 3307 
 Edmond, OK  73083-3307 
 
All notices shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested.  Notices mailed in accordance 
with the foregoing shall be deemed to have been delivered five (5) days after deposit in the U.S. 
Mail at Guthrie, Oklahoma. 
 

13. ALTERATION OF LEASED PREMISES.  Lessee shall have no right to make 
any alterations to the Leased Premises unless prior written approval for the alterations is obtained 
from Lessor.  All approved alterations shall be made at the expense of Lessee. 

 
14. RISK OF LOSS.  Lessor shall have no responsibility for any loss of, damage to, 

destruction or disappearance of any of Lessee's property in the Leased Premises.  Lessee assumes 
the entire risk of the foregoing.  Lessee understands that Lessor does not, and will not, maintain 
any casualty or other insurance on Lessee's property.  Lessee waives any right of subrogation on 

194194



behalf of its insurance carrier against Lessor for any loss of, damage to, destruction or 
disappearance of Lessee's property in the Leased Premises. 

 
15. DESTRUCTION OF SCHOOL BUILDING.  In the event the School building is 

damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty to the extent that the continued operation of the 
Leased Premises is not practical, either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and 
the rental shall be paid to the date of termination. 

 
16. LESSEE’S DEFAULT.  The following shall constitute events of default on the 

part of Lessee: 
 

a. failure to pay the monthly rental by the tenth (10th) of the month; 
 
b. operating the Leased Premises in a manner contrary to any law, ordinance or 

regulation; or 
 
c. violation or non-performance of any other obligation of Lessee under this 

Agreement which is not corrected by Lessee within a reasonable time after 
Lessee’s receipt of written notice from Lessor, except that written notice shall not 
be required for repeated violations or non-performance of the same nature. 

 
Upon the occurrence of an uncorrected event of default, Lessor shall have the right to terminate 
this Agreement and Lessee’s rights hereunder, including the right to occupy the Leased 
Premises, without notice or demand, statutory or otherwise, all of which are waived by Lessee. 

 
If Lessor elects to terminate this Agreement because of an uncorrected event of default, 

Lessee shall be liable to Lessor for: 
 
d. all past due and unpaid rentals, plus interest from the due date(s) at the rate of 

18% per annum; plus 
 
e. an amount equal to the present worth of the reasonable rental value of the Leased 

Premises from the date of Lessee’s last rental payment to the normal expiration of 
the Agreement term, with no duty to mitigate damages; and 

 
f. Lessor’s costs and expenses, including attorney fees, in recovering possession of 

the Leased Premises and reducing the amounts under subsections d. and e. to 
judgment. 

 
17. WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS.  Lessor makes and has made no 

warranties or representations concerning the Leased Premises, including, without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, its suitability or fitness for any use and the condition or state of 
repair of the facilities serving the Leased Premises, including structural elements, plumbing, 
heating, ventilation, electrical, mechanical and systems controls.  Lessee has inspected the 
Leased Premises and accepts the Leased Premises in "as is" condition. 

 

195195



18. LIABILITY INSURANCE.  During the term of this Agreement, Lessee shall 
maintain and pay for public liability and property damage insurance specifically related to the 
Leased Premises and issued by companies authorized to do business in the State of Oklahoma, 
naming Lessor as a co-insured, and providing coverage in amounts not less than the amounts 
required to insure District's liability under the Oklahoma Governmental Tort Claims Act, 
including any amendments thereto subsequent to the date of this Agreement.  Copies of the 
certificates of insurance shall be furnished to Lessor prior to the commencement of the 
Agreement term and replacement certificates shall be furnished from time to time during the 
Agreement term to evidence that liability insurance is in force at all times.  All insurance 
certificates issued under this section shall provide for at least ten (10) days' prior written notice 
to Lessor before cancellation of the coverage for any reason, including non-payment of the 
premium. 

 
19. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASE.  Lessee shall not assign this Agreement or 

any interest herein or sublease all or any part of the Leased Premises without the prior written 
consent of Lessor. 

 
20. WAIVER.  The failure of either party to seek redress against the other for 

violation of, or to insist upon strict performance of the terms and provisions of this Agreement, 
will not constitute a waiver of the right to seek redress for any subsequent violation of the terms 
and provisions, or of any right to insist on strict performance. 

 
21. GOVERNING LAW.  This instrument is entered into in Oklahoma and the law of 

Oklahoma shall govern the construction of this instrument. 
 
22. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this instrument or its application to any 

party, person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of 
this instrument, or the application of the provision to the party, person or circumstances other 
than those as to which it is invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and each provision of 
this instrument shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 
23. MISCELLANEOUS.  This instrument represents the entire understanding 

between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof and may be modified only by the 
mutual written agreement of the parties.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and 
their respective successors and assigns, except that Lessee shall not assign this Agreement or 
sublease the Leased Premises.  Time is the essence of the obligations of the parties herein.  
Lessee shall not advertise or represent that Lessee is sponsored by Lessor.  In the event any 
action is brought by either party to enforce this Agreement, or for breach of the terms of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover a reasonable attorney's fee, to be 
fixed by the court, and its other costs. 
 

196196



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have signed this Agreement as of the date 
first above written. 
 
Lessor:     INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
      OF LOGAN COUNTY, OKLAHOMA 
 
 
      By:        
       President, Board of Education 
 
 
Lessee:     NORTHchurch, Inc. 
 
 
 
      By:        
      Name:        
      Title:        
 

197197



198198



199199



200200



201201



202202



203203



204204



205205



206206



207207



208208



209209



210210



211211



212212



213213



214214



215215



216216



217217



218218



219219



220220



221221



222222



223223



224224



 

                                                                                               
Guthrie Public Schools 

Memo 

To: Dr. Simpson and Guthrie Board of Education   

From: Carmen Walters, Director of Federal Programs/Elementary Education 

Date:    May 23, 2017 

Re: Aurora Learning Community Association (ALCA) Agreement 
   

Attached is a copy of the 2017-2018 agreement between Guthrie Public Schools and 
Aurora Learning Community Association (ALCA).  Aurora Learning Community 
Association (ALCA) provides districts an online test data service known as Comprehend. 
Teachers can generate a multitude of test data graph reports (each in seconds) which: 
disaggregate their OSTP test data for any subgroup, down to objectives for the standards, 
determine objectives in which an individual student or the group as a whole are strong or 
weak, show student cohort reports (performance and scores) of progress through multiple 
years, provide standard and objective trend analysis of multiple years and allow for 
student tracking/inventories using other data sets such as NWEA (MAP) and interim 
assessments.  
 
The cost for the 2017-2018 ALCA web based program is $4,760.00 which is a decrease 
from last year of $950.00.  General funds will be utilized to cover the cost of the 
program. 
 
I recommend approval of the license agreement between Guthrie Public Schools and 
Aurora Learning Community Association. 
 
 

225225



226226



Aurora Learning Community Association 
ALCA Arch Licensing Agreement

This Arch License Agreement (“Agreement”) is by and between 
the Aurora Learning Community Association, 1001 East Elm, 
Fairview, Oklahoma 73737 (“ALCA”) and Customer (as defined in
subsection 1.3 of this Agreement).

1.  DEFINITIONS. For purposes of this Agreement, the 
following terms shall mean the following:

1.1  Arch Platform is a combination of many individual and 
integrated software components working together to provide an on-
line platform through Arch which provides a means for allowing 
users to establish and maintain on-line learning communities over 
the internet. The Software provides a complete system of service 
components, which include but are not limited to, the following 
components: Comprehend, Assessment System, Course Planning 
and Delivery, Content Creation and Management, Collaboration 
Service, Project Management Service and Standards Management 
Service.
1.2  Comprehend is software allowing Qualified Subscribers
(as defined in subsection 1.7 of this Agreement) to manage, 
manipulate, filte , analyze and report data.
1.3  Customer means an individual, school, school district, 
career tech, college, university or other educational entity 
using the Software as designated on page 4 of this Agreement 
or anyone affiliated with the preceding (i.e. teachers, students,
staff, evaluators, etc.), and each individual’s employer for those 
individuals using the Software within the scope of his or her 
employment, if any.
1.4  FERPA means Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
codified at 20 U.S.C. §1231g et seq. and related regulations as
amended.
1.5  GammaStream means GammaStream Technologies, Inc., 
an Oklahoma corporation.
1.6  License means a restricted, limited, non-exclusive, 
nontransferrable right to use the Software granted hereunder, 
but only pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
without any ownership in or to the Software.
1.7  Qualified Subscribe  is an individual, school, school 
district, career tech, college, university or other non-profit entity
organized exclusively for educational purposes and exempt from 
Federal taxation under the Internal Revenue Code of the United 
States who will be using the Software for his, her or its own 
personal, household, recreational, educational or non-commercial 
use. If Customer is an employer, Customer must be a non-profit
entity which is organized exclusively for religious, educational 
or charitable purposes; operating exclusively for religious, 
educational or charitable purposes; and exempt from Federal 
taxation under the Internal Revenue Code of the United States of 
America; or a for-profit entity satisfactorily providing educational
content as determined by ALCA in its sole discretion.
1.8  Software means Arch and all computer software used in 
Arch Platform, including but not limited to Comprehend, and 
all computer software programs provided with this Agreement 

together with all accompanying documentation, utilities, any and 
all other interface software, and all upgrades provided by ALCA. 
Some third party materials included in the Software may be subject 
to other terms and conditions, which are typically found in a “Read 
Me” file located near such materials

1.9  Third Party(ies) means any and all persons, partnerships, 
corporations, limited liability companies, limited liability 
partnerships, companies or any other associations or organizations 
except for ALCA and Customer.

2.  LICENSE GRANT.

2.1  Use Certification  Customer hereby agrees and 
acknowledges an express condition to ALCA granting Customer a 
License to use the Software if that Customer is currently and will 
always continue to be a Qualified Subscriber during the term of
the License. Customer hereby represents, warrants and certifies
to ALCA that Customer is a Qualified Subscribe . If Customer is 
not a Qualified Subscribe , then Customer has no rights to use the 
Software under this Agreement, and further represents, warrants 
and certifies not to use the Software and to discontinue any existing 
use of the Software.
2.2.  Grant. In consideration of payment of all fees due under 
this Agreement, Customer complying with this Agreement and 
Customer performing hereunder, ALCA grants Customer a 
restricted, limited, non-exclusive, non-transferrable right to use the 
Software, but only according to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. The specific use rights granted to Customer regarding
the Software are as follows depending on the type of License 
Customer has acquired:
 2.2.1  Individual License. The Individual License is 
a License issued to Customer as an individual person allowing 
Customer to use the Software for Customer’s own personal, 
household, recreational, educational, and non-commercial use only. 
The Software shall be maintained on the Arch Platform. Customer 
is strictly prohibited from using the Software for any other purpose 
or for the benefit or on behalf of any Third Party. If Customer fails 
at any time to use the Software accordingly, Customer’s rights to 
use the Software under this Agreement are immediately terminated 
and Customer further represents, warrants, and certifies Customer
will not use the Software and will discontinue any existing use of 
the Software. 
 2.2.2  Non-Profit Entity License  The Non-Profit Entity
License is a License issued to Customer as a non-profit entity
such as a public or private school district, church, charity, etc. 
allowing Customer to use the Software for religious, educational, 
or charitable purposes only. The Software shall be maintained on 
the Arch Platform. Customer is strictly prohibited from using the 
Software for any other purpose or for the benefit or on behalf of
any Third Party. If Customer or anyone affiliated with Customer
(i.e. teachers, students, staff, evaluators, etc.) fails at any time 
to use the Software accordingly, Customer’s rights to use the 
Software under this Agreement are immediately terminated and 
Customer further represents, warrants, and certifies that Customer

Page 1 of 5
227227



Aurora Learning Community Association 
ALCA Arch Licensing Agreement

will not use the Software and will discontinue any existing use of 
the Software. Customer shall ensure all individuals affiliated with
Customer (i.e. teachers, students, staff, evaluators, etc.) comply 
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
 2.2.3  Shared Non-Profit Entity License  The Shared 
Non-Profit Entity License is the same as a Non-Profit Entit
License but it is shared among a number, to be determined by 
ALCA in its sole discretion, of small non-profit entities, such as
public or private school districts, churches, charities, etc. It allows 
each of the non-profit entities to use the Software for religious,
educational, or charitable purposes only, just as if each of the non-
profit entities purchased its own Non-Profit Entity License The 
Software shall be maintained on the Arch Platform. Each Customer 
is strictly prohibited from using the Software for any other purpose 
or for the benefit or on behalf of any Third Party other than the 
non-profit entities sharing the License. All of the small non-profit
entities in a group sharing a Shared Non-Profit Entity License
must have subscribed for the License within six months of the 
first invoice date of those small non-profit entities included in th
group. If the group fails to attain the number of small non-profit
entities required for the Shared Non- Profit Entity License, as
determined by ALCA in its sole discretion, then the subscribing 
non-profit entities of the group may convert their Shared Non
Profit Entity License to a Non-Profit Entity License paying an
additional fees required by ALCA, or may terminate their Shared 
Non-Profit Entity License without receiving any refund of amounts
already paid for the License. If any Customer fails at any time 
to use the Software accordingly, each Customer’s rights to use 
the Software under this Agreement are immediately terminated 
and each Customer further represents, warrants, and certifies that
each Customer will not use the Software and will discontinue any 
existing use of the Software.
2.3  Use Limitations. Subject to the terms and provisions of 
this Agreement, including but not limited to section 3 of this 
Agreement, this Agreement and the License granted hereunder, 
only gives Customer the right to use the Software as directed by 
ALCA.
2.4  Term. The term of the License shall begin on the invoice 
date for all amounts due under this Agreement and terminate one 
year after the invoice date unless sooner terminated according to 
section 13 of this Agreement.
2.5  Revocable. The License granted hereunder is revocable at 
any time, with or without cause, in the sole discretion of ALCA by 
ALCA sending written notice of the revocation to Customer.
2.6  Non-Exclusive. Customer’s License to use the Software 
shall be non-exclusive. ALCA, in ALCA’s sole discretion, may 
license or provide the Software to any and all Third Parties, or use 
the Software for the benefit of Third Parties.
2.7  Non-Transferrable. Customer’s License to use the 
Software shall be non-transferrable without the prior, written 
consent of ALCA which ALCA may withhold in its sole discretion. 
Any attempted sublicense, assignment or transfer by Customer in 
violation of this Agreement shall be void.

3.  USE RESTRICTIONS. Without the prior written consent 
of ALCA, Customer may not, at any time, either directly or 
indirectly, and Customer may not assist or enable any Third Party, 
either directly or indirectly, to:

3.1  Reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble, or alter in any 
way the Software; 

3.2  Sublicense, sell, lease, rent, dispose of, assign, or otherwise 
transfer the License or Software to any Third Party;

3.3  Distribute in whole or in part, modify, or create derivatives 
of the Software or applications created with the Software; or

3.4  Share the Software or the use of the Software with any 
Third Party or provide access to any Third Party in any way, 
including but not limited to non-ALCA certified trainers, although
ALCA certified trainers may have access to the software in ALCA 
approved training sessions for Customer.

4.  TITLE TO SOFTWARE; COPYRIGHT. Customer 
hereby acknowledges and agrees the Software is proprietary 
to GammaStream and remains the property of GammaStream 
protected by trade secret and/or copyright law. The License only 
gives Customer the right to use the Software according to the terms 
and provisions of this Agreement. This Agreement does not confer 
any ownership in the Software to Customer. GammaStream owns 
all title and intellectual property rights in and to the Software, the 
accompanying printed materials, and any copies of the Software. 
Customer hereby further acknowledges and agrees to be bound 
as a third party beneficiary by all of the terms and conditions of
the Software License Agreement between GammaStream and 
ALCA dated June 25, 2003 and future amendments thereto, of 
which ALCA shall provide a copy within 30 days after Customer’s 
written request for a copy.

5.  PAYMENT. Upon execution of this Agreement and on 
the same day of each year thereafter, Customer shall pay ALCA 
an annual total sum in accordance with its standard fee schedule 
in effect at the time ALCA invoices Customer for all amounts 
due which are reflected on the Addendum attached hereto and 
made a part hereof. Any support services provided by ALCA 
or GammaStream shall be billed to Customer according to the 
standard fee schedule in effect at the time services are provided.

6.  TAXES. In addition to all other amounts payable under this 
Agreement, Customer shall promptly pay to ALCA any and all 
sales and other taxes, federal, state or otherwise, which are levied 
or imposed because of the License or the transactions contemplated 
by this Agreement.

7.  SUPPORT SERVICES. GammaStream shall provide 
technical consulting and support services as requested by Customer 
at GammaStream’s standard fee schedule in effect at the time 
services are provided.

8.  CONTENT. The Software is designed to allow Customer 
and Third Parties having a License to use the Software, to publish 
and share educational information, materials and content with each 

Page 2 of 5
228228



Aurora Learning Community Association 
ALCA Arch Licensing Agreement

other so there may be a free exchange of educational information 
and resources among those having a License to use the Software. 
As a result, Customer hereby understands and agrees as follows:
8.1 ALCA shall have the sole discretion in determining which 
information, materials and other content gets published and shared 
using the Software, and Customer hereby grants ALCA the right to 
determine if the information, materials and other content provided 
by Customer gets published or shared using the Software and to 
censor the information, materials and other content Customer 
provides. ALCA may in its sole discretion, either with or without 
cause and at any time, restrict Customer from publishing or sharing 
information, materials or other content through the Software, or 
require Customer to discontinue publishing or sharing information, 
materials or other content through the Software.
8.2 ALCA has no obligation to review, censor or police any 
information, material or other content, at any time, either before it 
is published or shared through the Software, whether by Customer 
or other Third Parties, or after it is published or shared through the 
Software, whether by Customer or other Third Parties, although 
ALCA, in ALCA’s sole discretion, may choose to do so.
8.3  If ALCA reviews, censors or polices any information, 
material or content either before or after it has been published 
or shared using the Software, ALCA is not obligated to further 
review, censor or police any other information, material or content 
either published or shared through the Software, or proposed to be 
published or shared through the Software.
8.4  ALCA, GammaStream, and the Third Party providing the 
information, materials or content published or shared through 
the Software do not certify the contents or accuracy, or make any 
representations or warranties regarding the information, materials, 
or content provided through the Software. Customer hereby 
releases ALCA, GammaStream, and the Third Party providing 
the information, material or content, from any and all liability 
associated with Customer relying upon, disseminating, or in any 
way using the information, materials, or content provided through 
the Software.
8.5  Any and all information, materials, or content provided 
by Customer by using the Software shall be for educational or 
informational purposes only, as determined by ALCA in ALCA’s 
sole discretion. Customer further consents and agrees that any and 
all Third Parties having a License to use the Software may use all 
information, materials, or content provided by Customer through 
the Software, for educational or informational purposes only, 
without any further restriction.
8.6  ALCA reserves the right to terminate Customer’s License 
at any time, with or without cause, in ALCA’s sole discretion 
and for no reason or for any reason, including but not limited to 
Customer’s use of the Software not complying with the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement, including but not limited to, the 
terms and provisions of this section 8.

9. DATA MANAGEMENT.

9.1 Data Source and Results. ALCA will only import data 

provided by Customer into the Software in order for the Software 
to provide Customer with information, reports and analysis of 
Customer’s data. ALCA will not create, load or generate any data 
to be used by the Software, except ALCA will upload data into 
the Software for customer as long as Customer provides its data 
to ALCA in the format required by ALCA. ALCA shall not have 
any obligation to review or verify the accuracy of Customer’s data. 
ALCA does not hereby certify the contents or accuracy of the data 
imported into the Software. Furthermore, ALCA does not hereby 
certify the contents or accuracy of the information, reports and 
analysis computed by the Software, or make any representations or 
warranties regarding the information, reports or analysis provided 
by the Software. In addition to other releases contained herein and 
not in limitation thereof, Customer hereby releases ALCA and 
GammaStream from any and all liability resulting from erroneous 
or inaccurate information, reports or analysis computed by the 
Software for Customer or Third Parties.

9.2  FERPA Compliance. Customer hereby represents, warrants 
and covenants to ALCA and GammaStream that Customer will 
ensure Customer and any of Customer’s agents and representatives, 
ALCA and any of its agents and representatives, GammaStream 
and any of its agents and representatives, and any Third Parties 
and any of their agents and representatives to whom Customer 
discloses data have complied and will remain in compliance with 
any and all state and federal regulations governing the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement, including but not limited to 
FERPA and the public disclosures required thereunder. In addition 
to other releases contained herein and not in limitation thereof, 
Customer hereby releases ALCA and GammaStream from any 
and all liability resulting from violation of state or federal rules or 
regulations hereunder.

9.3  Confidentialit . During the term of this Agreement, 
ALCA will have access to proprietary and confidential
information, documents and instruments containing student 
data. All information ALCA has access to during the term of this 
Agreement, including but not limited to individual student data, is 
proprietary and confidential information belonging to Custome . 
All documents and instruments and any copies thereof ALCA has 
access to during the term of this Agreement is property belonging 
to Customer, and ALCA will hold them in express trust for 
Customer and on Customer’s behalf. Without Customer’s prior 
written consent or direction or authorization, during the term of 
this Agreement and any time thereafter, ALCA will not disclose 
any of  Customer’s information, documents or instruments to 
any Third Party; will not use any of Customer’s information, 
documents or instruments for the use or benefit of any Third Party; 
and will not use any of  Customer’s information, documents or 
instruments for ALCA’s own use or benefit. In addition to other
releases contained herein and not in limitation thereof, if Customer 
authorizes or directs disclosure of confidential information,
documents or instruments to a Third Party, Customer hereby 
releases ALCA and GammaStream from any and all liability 
resulting from said disclosure.

Page 3 of 5
229229



Aurora Learning Community Association 
ALCA Arch Licensing Agreement

10.  NO WARRANTIES. THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED 
“AS IS” WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, AND NO 
OTHER WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED ARE 
MADE WITH RESPECT TO THE SOFTWARE, INCLUDING 
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES 
OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE, TITLE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT, OR ANY 
OTHER WARRANTIES THAT MAY ARISE. ALCA AND 
GAMMASTREAM DO NOT WARRANT, GUARANTEE, 
OR MAKE ANY REPRESENTATIONS REGARDING 
THE USE OF OR THE RESULTS OF THE USE OF THE 
SOFTWARE IN TERMS OF CORRECTNESS, ACCURACY, 
RELIABILITY, OR OTHERWISE AND DO NOT WARRANT 
THAT THE OPERATION OF THE SOFTWARE WILL BE 
UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE. BOTH ALCA AND 
GAMMASTREAM EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL  
WARRANTIES. ALTHOUGH ALCA AND GAMMASTREAM, 
TO THE BEST OF THEIR KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, DO 
NOT BELIEVE THEY HAVE INFRINGED ON ANY THIRD 
PARTIES’ PROPERTY RIGHTS, COPYRIGHTS OR PATENTS, 
BOTH ALCA AND GAMMASTREAM DO NOT WARRANT, 
GUARANTEE OR MAKE ANY REPRESENTATIONS AS 
TO THEIR RIGHTS IN THE SOFTWARE AND EXPRESSLY 
DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY ASSOCIATED WITH 
ANY POSSIBLE PROPERTY RIGHT, COPYRIGHT OR 
PATENT INFRINGEMENT CLAIMED BY THIRD PARTIES. 
FURTHERMORE, BOTH ALCA AND GAMMASTREAM 
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY FOR THE 
CONTENT CONTAINED IN THE SOFTWARE.

11.  RELEASE AND HOLD HARMLESS.

11.1  Customer hereby releases and holds ALCA and its 
successors and assigns harmless from any and all liability resulting 
from any claims, actions, causes of actions, suits, debts, sums 
of money or any other proceedings, or actions, whether legal or 
equitable, resulting from this Agreement, the grant of the License 
hereunder, or Customer’s use of the Software.

11.2  Customer hereby agrees and acknowledges that ALCA, 
GammaStream, any of their employees or agents, or any Third 
Party affiliated with them have not provided Customer with any
legal advice regarding this Agreement, the Software or the contents 
therein.

12.  INDEMNIFICATION. Customer shall indemnify ALCA 
and its successors and assigns, from any liability from any claims, 
actions, causes of actions, suits, debts, sums of money or any other 
proceedings or actions, whether legal or equitable, resulting from 
this Agreement, the grant of the License hereunder, or Customer’s 
use of the Software, including, but not limited to attorney fees, 
accountant fees, or court costs expended by ALCA in defending 
any such actions. Customer shall reimburse ALCA on demand 
for any payment made by ALCA at any time after the date of this 
Agreement, based upon the judgment of any court of competent 
jurisdiction or pursuant to a bona fide compromise or settlement of

claims, demands or actions, in respect of any damages to which the 
foregoing indemnity relates.

13.  TERMINATION AND REMEDIES.

13.1  Termination. ALCA has the absolute and unconditional right 
to terminate this Agreement and the License granted hereunder at 
any time in ALCA’s sole discretion either with or without cause, 
upon sending written notice of the termination to Customer. Unless 
specifically waived in writing by ALCA, this Agreement and the 
License granted hereunder shall automatically and immediately 
terminate upon the occurrence of any of the following:

 13.1.1  Customer failing to comply with or to perform when 
due any term, obligation, covenant, or condition contained in this 
Agreement;

 13.1.2  Any covenant, representation or warranty contained 
herein being materially false;

 13.1.3  Any suit, action or other proceeding being filed
before any court or governmental agency against Customer;

 13.1.4  Customer’s dissolution, either voluntarily or 
involuntarily;

 13.1.5  The appointment of a receiver for any part of 
Customer’s property; or

 13.1.6  Any proceeding being commenced by or against 
Customer under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws.

13.2  Remedies. In the event Customer breaches this Agreement 
in any way, or in the event ALCA has a good faith belief Customer 
is about to breach this Agreement, ALCA shall have the right to 
pursue any and all remedies existing at law or in equity and to 
collect any and all expenses of collection and enforcement of 
ALCA’s rights and Customer’s obligations hereunder, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. ALCA’s remedies under this 
Agreement shall not be exclusive but shall be cumulative and in 
addition to all other remedies provided by law and equity. No delay 
or omission in the exercise of any remedy of ALCA shall impair 
or affect its right to exercise the same. Customer’s breach of this 
Agreement could result in irreparable injury to ALCA. Accordingly, 
ALCA shall have the right to secure equitable relief against any 
actual or threatened breach of any provision of this Agreement 
without proving actual damages.

13.3  Effect of Termination or Expiration. In the event of any 
partial or complete termination or expiration of this Agreement, 
Customer’s representations, warranties and covenants shall 
survive termination or expiration. Customer shall remain bound 
by the representations, warranties and covenants contained in this 
Agreement and shall not be relieved of any obligation.

14.  GENERAL.

14.1  Notices. All notices required or permitted herein must be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given on the date of 
service if served personally or by telecopier, telex, e-mail or other 

Page 4 of 5
230230



Aurora Learning Community Association 
ALCA Arch Licensing Agreement

Gary Sacket

President,  ALCA

June 1, 2017

AURORA LEARNING COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

By:   ________________________________________________

Name:  ______________________________________________

Title:   _______________________________________________

Date:  _______________________________________________

similar communication to the party or parties to whom notice is 
to be given or on the third business day after mailing if mailed to 
the party or parties to whom notice is to be given by registered 
or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, to
Customer at Customer’s last known numbers and address; or to 
ALCA at the numbers and address set forth below:

Mr. Gary Sacket, President
Aurora Learning Community Association
1001  East Elm Fairview, Oklahoma 73737
Phone: (580) 227-1007
Fax: (580) 227-1019
Mail: sacketg@alcaweb.org

or to such other numbers or addresses as either party hereto may 
designate to the other from time to time for this purpose. Any 
communication which is mailed shall be confirmed immediately
by telecopier, but failure to so confirm shall not a fect the 
effectiveness of such notice from and after the date on which such 
notice is actually received.
14.2  Integrated Agreement. This instrument contains and 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties herein and 
supersedes all prior agreements and understandings between 
the parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof. There 
are no agreements, understandings, restrictions, warranties, or 
representations among the parties relating to the subject matter 
hereof other than those set forth herein. All other instruments 
or documents delivered pursuant to this Agreement are hereby 
incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement.
14.3  Construction. This Agreement shall be construed, 
enforced, and governed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of  Oklahoma. All pronouns and any variations thereof shall be 
deemed to refer to the masculine, feminine, or neuter gender 
thereof or to the plurals of each, as the identity of the person or 
persons or the context may require. The descriptive headings 
contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and 
are not intended to describe, interpret, define, or limit the scope,
extent, or intent of this Agreement or any provision contained 
herein. The parties have participated jointly in the negotiation and 
drafting of this Agreement. In the event an ambiguity or question 
of intent or interpretation arises, there shall be no presumption or 

burden of proof which arises favoring or disfavoring any party by 
virtue of the authorship or any of the provisions of this Agreement.

14.4  Jurisdiction and Venue. The District Court of Major 
County, State of Oklahoma shall have the exclusive jurisdiction and 
venue over all disputes, controversies or litigation regarding this 
Agreement and the enforcement thereof.

14.5  Invalidity. If any provision contained in this Agreement 
shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, void or 
unenforceable in any respect, such provision shall be deemed 
modified so as to constitute a provision conforming as nearly as
possible to such invalid, illegal, void or unenforceable provision 
while still remaining valid and enforceable, and the remaining 
terms or provisions contained herein shall not be affected thereby.

14.6  Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon, 
inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the parties hereto and
their respective successors and assigns. This Agreement shall be 
in full force and effect upon Customer downloading the Software, 
Customer clicking the applicable button to complete the installation 
process, or Customer reviewing any of the accompanying 
documentation.

14.7  Litigation Expense. In any action brought by a party hereto 
to enforce the obligations of any other party hereto, the prevailing 
party shall be entitled to collect from the other party to such action 
such party’s reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs and other 
expenses incidental to such litigation.

14.8  Amendment and Waiver. This Agreement may be amended 
at any time, but only by an instrument in writing executed by both 
parties hereto. A party hereto may waive any requirement to be 
performed by the other party, provided that such waiver shall be in 
writing, and executed by the party waiving the requirement.

14.9  Assignment. Customer shall not transfer or assign it rights 
and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of ALCA although may freely transfer or assign its rights 
and obligations under this Agreement at any time.

14.10  Time of Essence. Time shall be of the essence with respect 
to the performance by the parties hereto of their respective 
obligations hereunder.

BY SIGNING BELOW, CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES TO BE LEGALLY BOUND BY THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF 
THIS AGREEMENT.

CUSTOMER

By:   ________________________________________________

Name:  ______________________________________________

Title:   _______________________________________________

Date:  _______________________________________________

Page 5 of 5
231231



 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Staking a Claim in Our Students' Future 

GUTHRIE ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 

STUDENT HANDBOOK 
 
 
 

2016 – 20172017-2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

232232



 
 
 

Dear Parents and Students, 

We want to take this opportunity to welcome you to our school.   We look 
forward to working with each of you so that together we can provide the very best 
educational experience possible for your child. 

Our success as educators depends greatly upon your support and cooperation.  
We ask that you read through and discuss the handbook policies and procedures 
with your child so that he/she will understand the expectations that have been 
established for them. 

We encourage you to be actively involved in every aspect of your child's 
education. Each school year is full of potential for many successes which can only 
be realized with the united effort of school and home. 

THANK YOU FOR SHARING YOUR CHILD WITH US! 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

233233



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Section Subject 

A Absence, Attendance & Tardies 
B Bicycles 
C Breakfast, Lunch and Snacks 
D Civil Rights Compliance & Assurance Due Process 

FERPA 
E Classroom Request/Change 
F Curriculum 
G Dangerous Weapons 
H Diabetes Plan 
I Discipline & Behavior 
J Dress Code 
K Enrollment 
L Field Trips 
M Freedom Week Curriculum 
N Grading Guidelines 
O Money & Valuables 
P No School - Delayed Start 
Q Parent Involvement 
R Playground 
S Proficiency-Based Promotion 
T Reading Sufficiency Act 
U Release of Records 
V Retention Policy 
W School Health & Medications 
X School Safety Drills 
Y Sexual Harassment 
Z Special Activities 

AA Standards of Conduct 
BB Student Drop Off and Pick Up 
CC Student Organizations 
DD Student Reports 
EE Student Work Homework Make-Up Work 
FF Telephone 
GG Textbooks & Library Books 
HH Vandalism 
II Visitors 
JJ Website 
KK Wellness Policy 
LL Wireless Communication Devices 

 Disclaimer Site-Specific Handbook 
 Asbestos Management Plan 
  

234234



A: ABSENCES, ATTENDANCE, & TARDIES 
It is of utmost importance that students attend school every day. Irregular attendance is the most 
frequent cause of unsatisfactory work and school failures. When a student is unable to attend 
school, parents should notify the school by calling between 8:30 a.m. and 10:30 a.m. Parents 
should give the student's name and teacher's name. Assignments not completed due to an 
absence are expected to be made up. If a student is absent 10 consecutive days, the student will 
be dropped from the school roll. The parent must re-enroll the student upon return to school. It 
is the policy of the Guthrie Board of Education that a student is required to be in attendance 
a minimum of 90% of each semester. After the fifth and seventh unexcused absence during a 
semester a letter from the principal will be sent home. After the tenth unexcused absence the 
parent or guardian will be reported to the District Attorney for violation of truancy laws. 

TARDIES 
Tardies disrupt the instructional process and the time lost from class is irretrievable, particularly 
in terms of opportunity for interaction and exchange between students and teachers. Therefore, 
classroom punctuality is considered to be an integral part of the student's course of study. Six 
(6) tardies will equal one (1) absence. 

EARLY CHECKOUT 
Parents are discouraged from picking up students early on a regular basis as this disrupts the 
educational process and creates a loss of irretrievable instructional time. If a child is to be 
dismissed early, a written note is desired. A student must be signed out by a parent or guardian 
through the office. Six (6) early checkouts will equal one (1) absence. 

B: BICYCLES 
There are bicycle racks available for children to park and secure their bicycles. Each child 
should provide his/her own chain and lock for security reasons. Guthrie Public Schools cannot 
be responsible for lost, stolen, or damaged bicycles. Bicycle racks are available for grades 2-6 
only. 

C: BREAKFAST AND LUNCH 
Guthrie Public Schools offers a breakfast and lunch program. These programs will be offered 
to the children without regard to race, color, or national origin. Children may eat in the 
lunchroom by one of the following methods: 

1. He/she will pay full price. 
2. He/she will pay a reduced price or no price provided parents have made a written request 

and completed the necessary forms. (The District Child Nutrition Department shall 
have the responsibility of approving applicant eligibility in accordance to the federal 
guidelines for free or reduced lunches.) 

3. He/she may bring a sack lunch and may purchase milk. 
 
Charging cannot be allowed. Students who have a negative lunch account balance will 
be served an alternative meal for a period of 3 days. 

USDA regulations state "Schools shall make substitutions in foods listed in this section 
for students who are considered disabled under 7 CFR Part 15 (b) and whose disability 
restricts their diet. Schools may also make substitutions for non-disabled students who 
are unable to consume the regular lunch because of medical or other special dietary needs. 

235235



Substitutions shall be made on a case-by-case basis only when supported by a statement of 
the need for substitutions that includes recommended alternate foods, unless otherwise 
exempted by USDA Food and Nutrition Service. Such statement shall, in the case of a 
disabled student, be signed by a physician or, in the case of a non-disabled student, by a 
recognized medical authority. 

School Food Service Responsibilities: 

1. Required to make substitutions or accommodations for students with 
disabilities if meal service is normally available to general student 
population and a Section 504 Plan is on file for the student. 

2. Must provide additional meal services/food items not normally available 
for disabled students when required in an IEP, at no extra cost. 

3. Must base substitutions/modifications on a prescription written by a 
licensed physician. 

4. Must base substitutions/modifications for non-disabled students on a 
medical statement by a medical or health professional. 

5. Must not revise or change a diet prescription or medical order. 
6. May provide food substitutions or accommodations for non-disabled 

children with medically certified special dietary needs at no extra cost. 
7. All prescriptions or medical statements must be renewed each year, as 

needs do change from year to year as students grow and mature. 
       
    RECOMMENDED  HEALTHY  SNACK  OPTIONS: 
            

Nuts/peanuts Dried fruits Canned fruits Trail mix 
Whole-grain cereal bars Pretzels Baked chips or crackers Animal crackers 
Graham crackers Baked cereal mix Baked fish-shaped crackers Granola bars 
Whole-grain chips String cheese Fresh fruits Raw vegetables 
Popcorn Low-fat yogurt Low-fat baked goods Low-fat crackers 
Pudding Beef jerky Bagels Multigrain bars 
Fruit snacks Bottled water 100 percent fruit juice Tea (unsweetened or diet) 
Skim milk 1 percent milk Sports drinks Electrolyte replacement drink 
Fruit-based (no less than 50 percent fruit juice and no added sweeteners)  

 
     

236236



D: CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE & ASSURANCE 

NOTICE OF NON-DISCRIMINATION 
Guthrie Public Schools does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin,   
gender, age, or disability in its programs and activities and provides equal access to the 
Boy Scouts and other designated youth groups.  The Guthrie Public School System also 
does not discriminate in its hiring or employment practices.  This notice is provided as 
required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, the Age Discrimination 
Act of 1975, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Questions, complaints, 
or requests for additional information regarding these laws may be forwarded to the 
designated compliance coordinator. 

Name/Title:    Superintendent of Guthrie Public Schools 
Office Address:   802 E. Vilas, Guthrie, OK 73044 
Phone Number (Voice/TDD):   (405) 282-8900 
Days/Hours Available:  M-F   8:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.     1:00 p.m. - 4:30 
p.m. 

For questions regarding this notice, please contact the District Compliance Coordinator. 

Procedural Requirements 
Title VI, Title IX, Section 504, ADA 

July 2000 
AVISO DE DECLARACION NO-DESCRIMINATORIA 

Escuela Publica de Guthrie no discrimina raza, color, nacionalidad, genero,   edad o 
incapacidad de admision a sus programas, servicios, o actividades, en acceso a ellas, en 
el tratamiento a individuos, o en ningun aspecto de sus operaciones.  La Escuela Publica 
de Guthrie tampoco discrimina en sus contratos o practicas de empleados. 
Esta noticia es provista y requerida por el Titulo VI del Acto de Derechos Civiles de 
1964, Seccion 504 del Acto de Rehabilitacion de 1973, Titulo IX de la Enmienda 
Educativa de 1972, en el Acto de Era de Descriminacion de 1975, y el Acto de los 
Estadounidenses con Habilidades Diferenciadas de 1990.  Preguntas, quejas, o para mas 
informacion con respecto a estas leyes pueden ser recibidas por el cordinador de quejas. 

Nombre/Titulo:   Superintendente de las Escuelas Publicas de Guthrie 
Direccion de Oficina: 802 E. Vilas, Guthrie, OK 73044 
Numero Telefono (correro de voz/TDD): (405) 282-8900 
Dias/Horas de trabajo: L-V   8:00 a.m.-12:00 p.m.    1:00 p.m.-4:30 p.m. 

237237



Procedural Requirements 
Title VI, Title IX, Section 504, ADA 

July 2000 
DUE PROCESS 

Students have the right to due process. The due process procedure consists of the 
following steps: 
1. Appeal to the Principal-A written appeal must be mailed within five school 
days. 
2. Appeal to the Superintendent 
3. Appeal to the Guthrie Board of Education 

FAMILY EDUCATIONAL RIGHTS & PRIVACY ACT 
A parent or eligible student of Guthrie Public School District has a right to: 

1. Inspect and review the student's education records within 45 days of the day 
the District receives a request for access. Parents should submit to the school 
principal (or appropriate school official) a written request that identifies the 
record(s) they wish to inspect. The principal will make arrangements for 
access and notify the parent or eligible student of the time and place where 
the records may be inspected. 

2. Request the amendment of the student's education records that the parent 
believes are inaccurate or misleading. Parents may ask the District to amend 
a record that they believe is inaccurate or misleading. They should write the 
school principal, clearly identify the part of the record they want changed, and 
specify why it is inaccurate or misleading. If the District decides not to 
amend the record as requested by the parent, the District will notify the 
parent of the decision and advise them of their right to a hearing regarding 
the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing 
procedures will be provided to the parent when notified of the right to a 
hearing. 

3. Consent to disclosure of personally identifiable information contained in the 
student's education records, except to the extent that the Act and the 
regulations in this part authorize disclosure without consent; one exception 
which permits disclosure without consent is disclosure to school officials 
with legitimate educational interests. A school official is a person employed 
by the District as administrator, supervisor, instructor, or support staff 
member (including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit 
personnel); a person serving on the School Board; a person or company with 
whom the District has contracted to perform a special task (such as an 
attorney, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist); or a parent serving on an 
official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or 
assisting another school official in performing his or her tasks. A school 
official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review 
an education record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility. 

4. File a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged 
failures by the District to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name 
and address of the Office that administers FERPA are: 
  Family Policy Compliance Office / U.S. Department of Education 600 

Independence Avenue, SW / Washington, D.C. 20202-4605 

238238



E: CLASSROOM REQUEST AND PLACEMENT 
CHANGE  

  
CLASSROOM REQUEST 
Each year during the second semester Guthrie Public Schools allows parents of students 
currently enrolled in PK – 5 the opportunity to request a teacher for the next school 
year. Parents are to submit their request utilizing the 2016-2017 2017-2018 Teacher 
Request Form which may be obtained from the office of your child's school for the 
upcoming school year. This form requires parents/guardians to choose a minimum of 
four (4) teachers you prefer to have as your child's teacher. A list of teachers to choose 
from is located on the Teacher Request Form. Should you request a teacher who has 
transferred to another grade or is no longer an employee of the district, that teacher's 
replacement will be considered for your child. Your request will not be recognized if 
you number your preferences or choose less than four (4) choices. 

CLASSROOM PLACEMENT CHANGE  
From time to time parents feel a need to request moving their child to a different 
classroom. A decision as whether to change placement will only be made by the 
principal after every effort has been applied to resolve the problem. Consideration will 
not be given until a series of meetings have been held between the parent, teacher, and 
the principal, and a twenty (20) day action plan has been developed and implemented. 

F:   CURRICULUM 
Guthrie Public Schools curriculum for grades Pre-K through 12 follows the Oklahoma 
State Department of Education guidelines for curriculum.  A copy is available with the 
principal or teacher for viewing upon request.  A copy of the Standards may be 
obtained online at the Oklahoma State Department of Education website: 
http://ok.gov/sde 

 
G:   DANGEROUS WEAPONS 

The use, display, threat or possession of a dangerous weapon or any kind of instrument, 
on campus, parking lots, premises or property of the Guthrie Public Schools or during 
school sponsored activities, functions or events that is likely to be used as a weapon or 
tool which could be used to deface or vandalize school property shall result in 
immediate administrative action. 
 
The following instruments may be considered weapons: 

1. Knives and/or facsimiles 
2. Firearms and/or facsimiles (including cap guns, etc.) 
3. Explosives and/or facsimiles 
4. Metal Objects (chains, brass knuckles, etc.) 
5. Clubs 
6. Sharp or pointed instruments 
7. Stun guns 
8. Chemical sprays 
9. Firearm shells, bullets or pellets 

Violations of this policy will result in administrative action. Students may be 
suspended for up to one (1) calendar year for violation of this policy. 

239239



H:   DIABETES PLAN 
Guthrie Public Schools provides nursing services that promote students ability to learn. 
Our goals are to: 

• Assist students in learning how to take care of their health. 
• Ensure a safe school environment. 
• Promote good control of a student's health condition so they are ready to 

learn. 
Diabetes can affect a student's ability to learn if it is not under good control. To help us 
meet these goals, Guthrie Public Schools has a nurse who is a certified diabetes educator. 
She works with school, personnel, individual students with diabetes and their families, 
and the student's health care provider. 

As a reminder, each year we need to have the following information for your child: 

• Written diabetes management plan from your health care provider. 
• Signed authorization by parent/guardian for medication and treatment at 

school. 
• Diabetes Questionnaire filled out by parent/guardian/student. 

In addition, adequate supplies, as listed in the student's diabetes management plan, must 
be provided at school: 

• Snacks or glucose tablets to treat low blood sugar 
• Medications 
• Blood glucose meter, strips and supplies 
• Ketone testing strips and equipment 
• Glucagon 

 
We are looking forward to helping your child with diabetes be successful in school. 
Please feel free to contact us with any questions or concerns. 

I:    DISCIPLINE AND BEHAVIOR 
 Control and discipline in our school depends upon the responsibility taken by the 

student, the parents, the teacher, the principal, and the combined school 
personnel. While under the supervision of the school, the teacher has the same 
authority as the parent in restraining, correcting, and controlling the child. (State 
Law-Sections 125 and 670). 

 Each teacher will have their own individual classroom discipline procedures. 
These procedures will be discussed with you and your child and a list of these 
procedures will be sent home with your child at the beginning of the school year. 
Building discipline procedures will be applied according to the severity of the 
rules broken. Procedures may include: 

 

• Conference with teacher and student 
• Conference with teacher, student and principal 
• Conference with teacher, student, principal and parent 
• Conference with all the above and possible disciplinary actions 

240240



Severe Clause 
Guthrie Public Schools is dedicated to providing a safe learning environment 
for our students. The following behaviors will not be tolerated: 

• Behavior which threatens personal and /or public safety 
• Disruption of students' rights to learn 
• Verbal and/or physical abuse of others 
• Damage or theft of personal or school property 
• Any additional behaviors outlined in Section F-41 Student Behavior 

And Discipline in the GPS Policy Manual Located on the District 
Website. 

• Bullying will not be tolerated. Please refer to section F-31 Policy 
Prohibiting Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying And Procedures 
For Combating These Behaviors in the GPS Policy Manual Located 
on the District Website. 

Any of these violations shall result in a parent or guardian being contacted and/or 
a student's suspension from school. The length of the suspension will be assigned 
by the principal depending on the severity of the behavior. Administrators will 
conduct a suspension conference with the student and parent or guardians outlining 
the suspension and informing parents of their rights according to district policy 

The goal of our Schools is to develop student self discipline in a positive manner. This 
means giving the student a chance to make choices, and giving him/her a time to discuss 
his/her problems. Parent communication and support is an important part of discipline. 

All elementary schools will be utilizing the Responsive Classroom educational 
approach.  This is a research based educational approach associated with greater 
teacher effectiveness, higher student achievement, and improve school climate.  This 
approach consists of a set of practices that build academic and social-emotional skills 
that can be used with many other programs.  The approach helps educators build on 
competencies in four interrelated domains:  engaging academics, positive community, 
effective management, developmentally responsive teaching.   

 
ALTERNATIVE CLASSROOM 
Students who exhibit continually disruptive behavior may be placed in an alternative 
classroom setting at the discretion of the building principal without parent permission. 
Disruptive behavior infringes upon the rights of other students and will not be tolerated. 

THREATS 
Threats directed toward another person, whether verbal or written, will not be tolerated. 
A threat will be referred immediately to the building principal and may result in a long-
term suspension. Drawing or writing about the use of weapons or gang-related items or 
symbols will not be tolerated. This behavior may also result in a suspension. 

LASER PENS AND LIGHTS 
Laser pens or lights are not allowed. If discovered, they will be confiscated. 
 

241241



J:   DRESS CODE 
All students are expected to dress appropriately and modestly at all times during the 
school day and at school activities. Appropriate school clothes are conducive to better 
behavior in the classroom, in the halls, on campus, or any time students are actively 
representing the school. The dress code is applicable during the school day and at any 
school activity, home or away. 

Examples of inappropriate attire are, but are not limited to: 

1. Headwear worn in the building including, but not limited to: hats, bandanas, 
sweatbands and hoods of sweatshirts. 

2. Clothing that inappropriately exposes the body. Any clothing that exposes the midriff. 
Shirts need to be long enough so that they can be tucked in or drop two (2) inches 
below the waistline without tugging on or stretching the shirt. 

3. Clothing that allows undergarments to be visible. 
4. Under no circumstance is a student to wear clothing that is frayed or has holes above 

the knees. 
5. Clothing that has obscene, profane, or suggestive language. 
6. Sunglasses (including when worn as headwear.) 
7. Garments that display alcohol, drug or tobacco logos or paraphernalia. 
8. Mesh jersey or fishnet type clothing. 
9. All sleeveless shirts, blouses, and dresses whose straps are not at least 3 fingers wide 

and not fitted under the arm. 
10. Scooped neck and / or low cut front and back necklines that are not modest. 
11. Pants below the waistline (sagging and bagging). 
12. Shorts, dresses, and skirts shorter than fingertip length. 
13. Bicycle pants/spandex shorts. 
14. Clothing that is not worn in accordance with the design (such as both straps being 

worn on overalls or legs on pants being worn at their full length.) 
15. Chains or "spikes" on clothing, with wallets, or worn as a necklace or bracelet. 

Shoes must be worn at all times for health reasons. "House shoes" are not an 
acceptable alternative. Shoes with wheels imbedded in them are not acceptable as 
they are safety hazards. 

When a student has worn inappropriate clothing to school, he/she will be sent to the 
office and parents or guardians may be requested to bring a change of clothing to school. 

FADS 
Each year there are a few things, including some "fads", which show up on our school 
sites. When a fad begins on campus and a "nuisance" develops, we shall immediately 
eliminate the nuisance. 

 

 

242242



K:  ENROLLMENT 
EMERGENCY INFORMATION - Should an emergency occur at school, parents are to 
have emergency contact information on the enrollment cards. Two alternative phone 
numbers should be given also in case no one is available at the home/work numbers. In 
the event that it is deemed necessary, 911 will be contacted as well as the parent. 

ENROLLMENT CARDS - Please come to the school to make any changes needed on 
a child's enrollment card during the school year. One of the most important uses of this 
card is to contact a parent when a child is injured or ill at school. If a parent changes 
employment, address, telephone numbers, doctor or emergency contacts, the school should 
be informed immediately. The medical information on the enrollment card must be filled 
out. 

IMMUNIZATIONS - State law requires that every student who is admitted to public 
school must have evidence of a successful series of vaccinations for 

• Four or Five doses DTP/DTaP (Diphtheria, Tetanus, Whooping Cough) 
• Three or Four doses Polio 
• Two doses MMR (measles, mumps, rubella/rubeola vaccinations) 
• Three doses Hepatitis B (hepatitis B) 
• Two doses Hepatitis A (hepatitis A) 
• Varicella immunization (Chicken Pox) or a parental history of a child having the 

disease. 

VERIFICATION OF RESIDENCE – All new and currently enrolled students must 
provide 2 current proofs of residency each year. Any change of address or telephone 
number should be reported to the School Office. 

GUARDIANSHIP - Proof of legal guardianship is required at the time of enrollment if 
the guardian is not the natural parent of the student. 
Court appointed papers (signed by a judge) denoting custody for students not living with both 
parents listed on the birth certificate are required. 

L:   FIELD TRIPS 
It is a privilege and honor for Guthrie Public School students to attend and represent our 
school at various activities through the course of the year. Only students with signed 
parent/guardian permission forms will be allowed to attend field trips approved by the 
school administration. If a parent or guardian of a student wishes to transport their child 
to the field trip they must: 1) inform the teacher in writing prior to the field trip 2) sign 
their child out of school and 3) sign their child in upon arrival at the field trip 
destination with the teacher or appointed staff member. If the parent wishes to transport 
their child from the field trip to home or back to school, they must sign out their child 
with their child's teacher or appointed staff member. Parents are not allowed to transport 
any other child but their own child. Guthrie Public Schools is not responsible for 
students transported by a parent to and from a school sponsored field trip. School dress 
code standards apply to all field trip activities. Inappropriate behavior on these trips 
may warrant severe disciplinary action. During any trip, any major inappropriate 
behavior may result in the student: 

1. Being sent home at his/her own expense. 

243243



2. Suspension from school for an appropriate amount of time. 
3. Loss of the privilege to go on any future school trips. 

 
Participation in a field trip is a privilege, not a right.  Throughout the year, students 
are expected to follow rules and procedures while being respectful to 
others.  Listening and being able to follow directions is another expectation as we 
provide a proper learning environment for all students.   If these basic requirements 
are not met on a daily basis your child may not be able to participate in a field 
trip.  When deemed necessary by the building principal, a parent or guardian may 
also be required to attend with their child. 

M:  FREEDOM WEEK CURRICULUM 
In order to educate students about the sacrifices made for freedom on behalf of this 
country and the values on which this country was founded, November 11 is designated 
"Veterans' Day" and the week in which November 11 falls is hereby designated 
"Celebrate Freedom Week". Appropriate instruction concerning this week will vary at 
different sites. (70 O.S. 2001, Section 24-152) 
 

N:   GRADING GUIDELINES FOR Pre-K – 6th  
All homeroom teachers' names are to be written on the permanent folders alongside the 
school year. 

The semester average will be recorded in the permanent record folder as required by state 
regulations. 

In grades Pre-K – 2nd, primary importance will be placed upon the teaching of reading, 
writing, language arts, and the development of math skills. All subject areas will be 
graded with a score of 
 4 – Exceeds Expectations 
 3 – Meets Expectations 
 2 – Progressing Toward Expectations 
 1 – Does Not Meet Expectations 
 
In grades 3rd-6th, the percent score and letter grade will be reported for each nine-
week period. The semester average will be computed and reported at the end of each 
semester. 

Grading Scale 
A – 90 – 100  
B – 80 – 89  
C – 70 – 79   
D – 60 – 69  
F – 59 – Below 
 

 
 

244244



In grades 3rd-6th, grades in physical education, music, art and handwriting will be 
reported accordingly: 

S - Satisfactory N - Needs Improvement U - Unsatisfactory 

Parents of students in grades Pre-K- 6th may access their child's grades by use of the 
Online Gradebook. Go to www.guthrieps.net under the parent section and complete the 
request for Online Gradebook Access form. 

O:   MONEY & VALUABLES 
Students are cautioned against bringing large sums of money to school. Radios, tape 
players, electronic devices and games, etc., belong at home. Toys of any kind also 
belong at home. School personnel will not be held responsible for toys, electronic 
equipment, or money lost or stolen when brought to school without teacher's request. 

P:   NO SCHOOL / DELAYED START 
In the event school is closed or starting late because of inclement weather, parents are 
asked to listen to local radio and television stations. When possible, the District's  
Website and automated phone system will also be updated and utilized to include the 
newest information. 

If weather conditions deteriorate during the school day and it becomes necessary to 
dismiss school early, the Superintendent will notify the local radio and television 
stations. When possible, the update will also be included on the District's website and 
automated phone system. Please remember not to phone the school to ask about closing 
or dismissal information. This will keep our telephone lines open in case of an 
emergency. 

Q:  PARENT INVOLVEMENT 
Parent involvement is a vital part of any school. In order for us to serve both the 
community and the school, we must have active parents. Parents are cordially invited 
to become active members in the learning process for their child. Parents, students, 
community, and the school must play a team role in order for students to excel in 
education. Background checks are required for all  school volunteers with direct contact 
with children. 

 
R:  PLAYGROUND 

The playground is an ideal place for students to develop cooperation, interpersonal 
relationships, and good social skills. Playground supervision is provided during the 
school hours of 8:00 - 3:00. Make sure that your child is appropriately dressed for the 
weather. 

S:   PROFICIENCY BASED PROMOTION 
All K-12 students are eligible to advance one or more levels in designated curriculum 
areas if they perform at 90% or higher on assessments designated by the Guthrie Public 
School District. This type of curriculum advancement is proficiency based promotion. 
Upon the request of a student, parent, or educator, a student will be given the opportunity 
to demonstrate proficiency in one or more areas of the core curriculum as identified in 
70.S & 11-103.6. Proficiency will be demonstrated by testing with the Oklahoma 

245245

http://www.guthrieps.net/


Proficiency Tests by Riverside or with district approved teacher made criterion-
referenced tests. Core areas are as follows: 

■ Social Studies 
■ Language Arts 
■ Mathematics 
■ Science 

Testing for proficiency based promotion must be requested in writing by the 
parent/guardian to the site principal during the first month of the school year and during 
the month of April. Additional details can be obtained from the District policy on 
Proficiency Based Promotion or from the site principal. 

T:   READING SUFFICIENCY ACT 
Students’ grades Kindergarten – 3rd that do not score proficient on the beginning of the 
year reading assessment will be placed on an Academic Progress Plan (APP).  If your 
child’s reading level does not improve by the end of the school year, he/she may need 
to attend the Summer Academy Reading Program. 

 

3rd Grade Students:  
The RSA law is intended to ensure that students have the necessary reading skills in 
order to be successful in grade four and beyond, where the rigors of reading in the 
content areas increase. 
 
To be promoted to fourth grade, state law requires that your child must score above the 
Unsatisfactory and Limited Knowledge level on the reading comprehension and 
vocabulary portion of the Oklahoma School Testing Program test. This means  in the 
2016-2017 school year. (i.e., your child will need to score Proficient, or Advanced in 
reading comprehension and vocabulary to meet RSA criteria. on the Reading portion 
of the Oklahoma Core Curriculum Test (OCCT).) If your child scores Unsatisfactory 
or Limited Knowledge, he/she may still be promoted if one or more of the six seven 
good cause exemptions apply. It is important to note that OCCT  OSTP results are the 
initial determinant for promotion decisions, but not the sole determiner. Portfolio 
reviews, alternative assessments and additional exemptions are available to assist the 
school district in knowing when a child is reading at or above grade level and ready for 
a grade promotion.  
 
If a student has not yet satisfied the proficiency requirements prior to the completion of 
third grade and still has a significant reading deficiency as identified based on 
assessments administered that meet the acquisition of reading skills, has not 
accumulated evidence of third-grade proficiency through a student portfolio, is not 
subject to a good cause exemption, then the student shall not be eligible for automatic 
promotion to fourth grade. 
 
To be considered for “probationary promotion”, a student may be evaluated by a 
“Student Reading Proficiency Team” composed of: 
 
 (1) the parent(s) and/or guardian(s) of the student 

246246



 
 (2) the teacher assigned to the student who had responsibility for 
  reading instruction in that academic year current teacher responsible for 
reading 
 
 (3) a teacher in reading who teaches in the subsequent grade level future 
teacher responsible for reading  
 
 (4) the school principal, and 
 
 (5)(4) a certified reading specialist (if available) 
 
The student shall be promoted to the fourth grade if the team members unanimously 
recommend “probationary promotion” and the principal and superintendent approve the 
recommendation of the SRPT.  to the school district superintendent and the 
superintendent approves the recommendation that promotion is the best option for the 
student. 

U: RELEASE OF RECORDS 
The school will maintain records on all students. The signature of a parent/guardian must 
be obtained to request or release records to other school districts. 

V:   RETENTION POLICY 
Recommendation for retention (declining a student the opportunity to advance to the next 
grade level) is a decision made carefully on an individual basis. This decision will be 
firmly focused on arriving at what is in the best interest of the student. The retention of 
a student shall be based upon the total growth of each individual student. Such factors 
as social, emotional, physical and mental growth, as well as attendance, shall be taken 
into consideration. 

Whenever a teacher or teachers recommend that a student be retained at the present grade 
level or "not passed" in a course, the parent or guardian, if dissatisfied with the 
recommendation, may appeal the decision by complying with the district's appeal 
process. The decision of the board of education shall be final. The parent may prepare a 
written statement to be placed in, and become a part of, the permanent record of the 
student stating the reason(s) for disagreeing with the decision of the Board of Education. 
70 O.S. 1991, Section 24-114.1 

W:  SCHOOL HEALTH & MEDICATIONS 
HEAD LICE/ COMMUNICABLE DISEASE - Oklahoma Statute §70-1210.194 
(2014) states that any child afflicted with a contagious disease or head lice may be 
prohibited from attending a public, private, or parochial school until such time as he/she 
is free from the contagious disease or head lice.  Any child prohibited from attending 
school due to head lice shall present to the appropriate school authorities, before the 
child may reenter school, certification from a health professional as defined by Section 
2601 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes or an authorized representative of the State 
Department of Health that the child is no longer afflicted with head lice.  

247247



ILLNESS AND MEDICATION - We request that you adjust your child's schedule to 
eliminate the need to take medication during the school day. In the event it is necessary 
for a child to use medication during the school day, please bring all medication to the 
office with required documentation. A log of the student's medication will be kept at the 
school office. 
 

       PRESCRIPTION AND NONPRESCRIPTION MEDICATION 
Prescription and nonprescription medication will only be administered by school staff with 
the completed medication authorization form, which may be obtained on the District's 
website under Enrollment. The prescription and nonprescription medication will be 
administered according to physician instructions. The prescription medication must be 
in the original container with student name, physician name, and name of pharmacy 
along with pharmacy address and phone number, name and strength of medication, 
expiration date, dosage and directions for administration. The nonprescription medication 
must be in the original container with student name affixed to the container, ingredients, 
expiration date, dosage and frequency, directions for administration, and other directions 
as appropriate. It is the responsibility of the parent/guardian to maintain the supply. It 
is the responsibility of the parent/guardian to pick up any medication at the end of the 
school year.  Any medication left at school after June 1st will be discarded utilizing the 
proper procedure.  

 
X:   SCHOOL SAFETY DRILLS 

All emergency drills will be performed in accordance with State Department of 
Education accreditation regulations. Below is a list of drills.  

1. Two lockdown drills referred to as “shelter in place” per school year. The 
purpose of the shelter in place drills is for a possible threat OUTSIDE the 
building.  

2. Two intruder drills per school year.  Intruder drills are conducted for the 
purpose of a threat INSIDE the building. Each intruder drill shall be 
conducted within the first fifteen (15) days of each semester. 

3. Two fire drills per school year.  Each fire drill shall be conducted within 
the first fifteen (15) days of each semester. 

4. Two tornado drills per school year with at least one drill being conducted 
in the months of September and March. 

5. The two remaining drills will be at the discretion of the district.  

Y:   SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
Sexual harassment is any type of verbal/physical abuse of a sexual nature. Suggestive 
comments, unwanted touching, obscene hand/body gestures, suggestive notes, etc., would 
be considered sexual harassment. Since this covers such a wide range/degree of offenses, 
the punishment on the first offense will range from three (3) days suspension to 
suspension for the remainder of the semester and the following semester. 

Z:   SPECIAL ACTIVITIES 
Each elementary site has four scheduled classroom activities during the year: Fall, 
Winter, Valentine's Day, and Spring. If you do not wish for your child to participate, 
please inform the classroom teacher in writing and alternate activities will be provided. 
Parents interested in being involved with these activities should contact the classroom 

248248



teacher. 
 

AA:  STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 
Each student is expected to behave in a manner which will add to the educational  
atmosphere at Guthrie Public Schools, and anything that detracts from the spirit of dignity 
at our schools will be subject to disciplinary actions. Students have the responsibility to 
know and respect the rules and regulations of the school. 
 
We desire that all students accept the responsibility of self discipline. Students are to 
conduct themselves as young ladies and gentlemen at all times (i.e. halls, cafeteria, 
classrooms, assemblies, and or playground.) When a student demonstrates that he/she 
cannot conduct himself/herself in a positive manner and infringes upon the rights of the 
others to enjoy the freedom of self discipline, he/she must face the consequences of  
disciplinary actions. 
The responsibility and authority for classroom management rest with the teacher.   Any 
classroom rules, which are fair and enhance the educational process, will be upheld. If  
problems persist to a degree that the classroom rules are being repeatedly ignored, a 
referral may be made to the principal where appropriate action will be taken. 
 
DRUGS AND ALCOHOL 
Any student who is found to be in possession of, to have consumed, or to be under the 
influence of narcotic drugs, barbiturates, prescription or non-prescription medication 
without proper permission and documentation (see section X), alcohol or any stimulant, 
or distributes / has possession of any material or drawings that promotes the use of or 
gives instruction on how to make or use the above items enroute to school, while 
attending school, in or on school premises, or at school sponsored activities, is subject to 
the following: 
1st Offense: Suspension from school for five (5) days. The student will not be allowed to 

attend school after suspension until documented evidence of educational 
counseling and/or rehabilitation treatment under the supervision of a legal agency 
is on file. 

2nd Offense: Suspension from school for the remainder of the semester, or for the 
following semester, provided no suspension shall extend beyond the regular 
academic year. 

Any student who distributes actual or represented controlled substances, prescription and 
non-prescription medication may be suspended for the remainder of the semester, or the 
following semester, provided no suspension shall extend beyond the regular academic 
year. 
 

TOBACCO 
In compliance with State Laws of Oklahoma, it shall be the policy of the Guthrie Board 
of Education that the use of, or possession of, tobacco products (including smokeless 
tobacco) in any form by students while attending school, on school premises, or at school 
sponsored activities, is prohibited. Any student in violation of said policy will face 
immediate disciplinary action: 
 1st Offense: Parent conference/phone contact and suspension from school for 

249249



three (3) days.  
2nd Offense: Parent conference/phone contact and suspension from school for 

five (5) days.  
3rd Offense: Suspension from school for ten (10) days. 
 

DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS: Disciplinary sanctions (consistent with local, state, 
and federal law), up to and including expulsion and referral for prosecution, shall be 
imposed on students who violate the standards of conduct. 

 
 
BB: STUDENT DROP OFF and PICK UP 
  Drop Off: There will be teacher Supervision starting at 7:30 a.m. 

 Pick Up: Children need to be picked up by 3:30 p.m.  There is No Supervision    
 after 3:40 p.m.  We know there are emergencies that may happen, please contact  
 the school before 3:30 p.m. to make arrangement for your child’s pick up. 

 
CC:  STUDENT ORGANIZATIONS 
 Guthrie Public Schools believes school sponsored student organizations can advance                   

educational goals. A list of school sponsored clubs and organizations are on the District  
website and in each site handbook. If you wish to withhold permission for your student to 
join or participate in one or more of the clubs or organizations that are necessary for a 
required course of instruction, you must notify the building principal in writing and 
retrieve your student from such participation. 70 §24-105 via H.B. 1826 (2009) 

DD:  STUDENT REPORTS 
A student's progress is reported at the end of each fifth week period, and report cards are 
distributed at the end of each nine weeks. Parents are to take advantage of opportunities 
to communicate with their child's teacher through notes, email, calls, visits, or meetings 
at a mutually convenient time. Notes, calls, visits, and meetings will be kept in a teacher 
log. 

 District-wide parent/teacher conferences are held at the end of the first and during the 
third nine week period.   In addition to communicating with the teacher, parents 
communicate an important message to their children about their interest in the child's 
progress and the importance of school. Our best partners in providing an outstanding 
educational program are our parents. 

EE:  STUDENT WORK  
HOMEWORK 
It is recommended that parents set aside a certain time each evening for the student to do 
his/her homework. When a child has an appointed time for homework, it helps him/her 
to remember to get it done. Homework should be done in a quiet setting away from 
television and other distractions. 
 
MAKE UP WORK & WORK SUBMITTED LATE 
Students, upon returning from an absence, will have one (1) day for each day missed plus 
one (1) day to turn in makeup work. After the allowed number of days have passed and 
the student has failed to turn in the missed work, he/she will be given a 0 grade for the 

250250



assignments. 

 

FF:  TELEPHONE 
The office telephone is a business phone and is not to be used by students, except in an 
emergency. Students are not allowed to use the telephone to make personal arrangements 
(such as requesting permission to go to another student's home after school.) Parents 
calling to leave messages should do so by 2:30 p.m. 

GG:  TEXTBOOKS & LIBRARY BOOKS 
Textbooks are loaned by the Guthrie Board of Education without charge. Teachers will 
distribute textbooks during the first few days of school. At the end of the year, all 
textbooks will be returned to the teachers. Replacement costs will be assessed for lost 
textbooks and/or library books and for damage through negligence or vandalism to books 
or other school property. If a student accidentally causes damage, they should report it to 
their teacher immediately so that the damage is not misconstrued as vandalism. If fines 
have been paid on books that are later found during the current school year, the money 
will be refunded to the student. (See Refund Policy) 
REFUND POLICY 

For auditing purposes, refunds must be approved and a check issued from the Board 
Office. Parents should receive a check within two weeks of the request. Cut-off date for 
all refunds is May 15.       

HH: VANDALISM 
Vandalism and defacing of property is prohibited. Any student committing an act of 
vandalism is subject to suspension. 

II:  VISITORS 
Guthrie Public Schools welcomes and encourages parents to visit our schools. All 
visitors, parents, and guests need to report to the main office upon arrival to the school 
and issued a visitor badge if they will be remaining in the building. 

JJ:  WEBSITE 
Guthrie Public Schools has created a website for students, parents, teachers and 
community members to access. The web address is www.guthrieps.net. The website 
contains district information, school calendar, lunch menus, publications, school news, and 
teacher web pages. 

KK:  WELLNESS POLICY 
Healthy eating and activity patterns are essential for students to achieve their full academic 
potential, full physical and mental growth, and lifelong health and well being. All students 
enrolled in Guthrie Public Schools shall possess the knowledge and skills necessary to 
make nutritious food choices and enjoyable physical activity choices. All playground and 
physical education equipment will meet the recommended safety standards for design, 
installation and maintenance. Classroom teachers and administrators will be encouraged not 
to use candy, sweets or gum as a reward. Guthrie Public Schools respectfully requests that 
parents and teachers who wish to provide snacks for students provide healthy choices. A 

251251

http://www.guthrieps.net/


recommended list of healthy snack options may be accessed on the Guthrie Public Schools 
website. 
 
 
LL:  WIRELESS COMMUNICATION DEVICES 
Students may possess a cellular telephone while on school premises or in transit under the 
authority of the school provided the device is turned off and out of sight during class time and 
during all school or school related activities. Students found to be using any electronic device for 
any illegal purpose, in a manner which violates privacy, or to in any way send or receive personal 
messages, data, or information that would constitute cheating on tests, or to harass or intimidate 
students or staff members shall be subject to discipline and the device shall be confiscated and 
not returned until a parent conference has been held. School personnel have the  
authority to detain and search or authorize the search of any student upon suspicion that the 
student is in violation of district policy. If a student violates district policy they may lose the 
privilege to possess a wireless communication device, or be suspended from school for a period 
not to exceed the current school semester and the succeeding semester. 
 
 

DISCLAIMER 

All of the preceding discipline steps are meant as a guide only. In severe or unusual cases, the 
judgment of the Administrator will take precedence. The Guthrie Public School Policy Manual will 
also be used in regard to school-student relationships. 

   Please refer to the site-specific handbook for more 
information about your child's school 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ASBESTOS MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 

In accordance with Federal law, Guthrie Public Schools has been inspected and approved for 
asbestos management. 
 
Asbestos plans are available for viewing during regular school hours, Monday thru Friday, by 
contacting the Director of Operations at the Maintenance Department located at 200 Crooks 
Drive, Bldg. #4, Guthrie, OK. 

252252



Cotteral Elementary School 
Site Information, Procedures and Rules 

2016 - 2017 
2017 – 2018 

 
The Cotteral Staff is delighted to welcome you and your child to school.  The first day 
will be one that you and your child will always remember.  You, as the parent, can 
help make the first days go smoothly by doing a few things to prepare your child. 

• To make your child more comfortable about going to school, conduct a dress 
rehearsal.  Practice the best route to the school or bus stop.  Show your child 
the school grounds.  Find out the teacher’s name and make sure your child 
knows it.  

• Do not pass of your child’s doubts and fears.  Try to answer all the questions 
in a positive, reassuring manner.  Talk about school in a friendly way so your 
child will think of it as a friendly place.  Let him/her know there will be 
friendly people to help on those first uncertain days. 

We are now partners, jointly dedicated to helping your child grow into a healthy, 
happy, fully aware person. 
 
 

Guthrie Public Schools Mission Statement 
 

It is the mission of Guthrie Public Schools to empower all students with the tools 
necessary to become productive members of society through a cooperative effort 
between students, home, school, and community. 
 
 

Cotteral Elementary School Mission Statement 
 

Our mission is to provide ongoing access, for all students, to a variety of teaching 
tools and resources, which will enable our students to become independent 
learners. 
 

State Standards 
 

During Pre-K and Kindergarten every student will be exposed to the State Standards 
that have been adopted by the Oklahoma State Department of Education. To view 
these standards please visit the following website: http://www.ok.gov/sde/. If you 
do not have internet access, you can request a copy from Cotteral Elementary. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

253253



 
 

Daily Schedules 
 

Breakfast                     7:30 – 8:10      
School begins           8:15 
A Lunch/Recess        10:50 – 11:15/11:15 – 11:45 
B Lunch/Recess        11:25 – 11:50/11:50 – 12:20 
C Lunch/Recess        12:00 – 12:25/12:25 – 12:55 
School end                   3:10   
 
 
Certified staff arrives at school to monitor children starting at 7:30 a.m.  For safety 
purposes, children cannot be dropped off before that time.  Children arriving 
between 7:30 & 8:15 will go to the gym area.  At 8:10 they will be dismissed to their 
classrooms. 
 

Pre-K Start and Dismissal Time 
 
A.M. Pre-K classes begin at 8:15 and dismiss at 10:45.  If your child eats lunch at 
school, they need to be picked up at 11:15. 
 
P.M. Pre-K classes begin at 12:40 and dismiss at 3:10.  If your child needs to eat 
lunch, they may be dropped off at 12:10.  All other children cannot be dropped off 
before 12:30. 
 
 

Breakfast and Lunch 
 

Please send your child’s breakfast and lunch money in a sealed envelope with your 
child’s name and teacher’s name on it.  Indicate how many and which meals you are 
purchasing (breakfast, lunch, or both). 
 
Breakfast is $1.20 $1.30 per day; reduced price is $.30 per day.  Lunch is $2.50 $2.60 
per day; reduced price is $.40 per day.    Prices are subject to change.  SCHOOL 
MEALS CAN’T BE CHARGED.  Applications and information for free or reduced 
meals are available in the school office or Child Nutrition office. If you have 
questions regarding the approval of the free and reduced meal applications please 
direct these calls to the Child Nutrition office.  Their number is 282-5952.  The 
school cafeteria cannot always answer questions regarding the status of these 
applications. Parents are welcome to eat with their children. Check with your child’s 
teacher for the actual time their class will be eating. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

254254



ABSENCES, ATTENDANCE, & TARDIES 
 
It is of utmost importance that students attend school every day. Irregular 
attendance is the most frequent cause of unsatisfactory work and school failures. 
When a student is unable to attend school, parents should notify the school by 
calling between 8:30 a.m. and 10:30 a.m. Parents should give the student's name 
and teacher's name. Assignments not completed due to an absence are expected to 
be made up. If a student is absent 10 consecutive days, the student will be dropped 
from the school roll. The parent must re-enroll the student upon return to school. It 
is the policy of the Guthrie Board of Education that a student is required to be in 
attendance a minimum of 90% of each semester.  
 

Pre-Kindergarten Attendance 
 

Cotteral’s Pre-Kindergarten program is an optional school program provided 
by Guthrie Public Schools within the school setting. The program is optional; 
however attendance is required. The expectation is for regular attendance 
including on time arrival. When the students have been absent/tardy more 
than ten (10) days, the Cotteral staff will review the attendance records to 
determine if program placement should be forfeited. If your spot is forfeited 
the spot will go to the next student on the waiting list. We encourage you to 
provide documentation of all absences. 
 
 

Progress Reports, Report Cards, 
Parent/Teacher Conferences 

 
Student progress is reported at the end of each nine weeks period.  Parent-Teacher 
conference times are set aside at the end of the first and third nine-week periods to 
provide parent-teacher communication between parents and teachers.  Parents can 
request a conference at any time by making an appointment with their child’s 
teacher. 
 

Discipline Procedures 
 

Discipline procedures for Kindergarten are the same as those outlined in the Guthrie 
Elementary Schools Student Handbook. 
 
All Pre-K children are given ample time to adjust to the new learning environment.  
If a child is having a difficult time adjusting to the point it disrupts and hampers the 
learning environment, the parent will be asked to assist by attending school with 
their child for a short period of time.  If the behavior does not improve and causes 
the learning process to cease a meeting will be held with the teacher, parents and 
administrator to determine further action. 
 
Please refer to Section F-41 Student Behavior and Discipline located in the GPS 
Policy Manual on the District Website 
 

255255



Bullying will not be tolerated. Please refer to Section F-31 Policy Prohibiting 
Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying Procedures for Combating These Behaviors 
located in the GPS Policy Manual on the District Website. 
 
 

Responsive Classroom 
 
All elementary schools will be utilizing the Responsive Classroom educational 
approach.  This is a research based educational approach associated with greater 
teacher effectiveness, higher student achievement, and improve school climate.  This 
approach consists of a set of practices that build academic and social-emotional 
skills that can be used with many other programs.  The approach helps educators 
build on competencies in four interrelated domains:  engaging academics, positive 
community, effective management, developmentally responsive teaching.   

 
 

Cafeteria Guidelines 
 
Breakfast is served from 7:30 AM to 8:10AM. Students eating breakfast at 
school should eat immediately upon arrival.   

School meals cannot be charged.  
The cafeteria starts serving breakfast at 7:30 a.m.  
Please go over the following cafeteria rules & reminders with your child:  

• Enter the cafeteria quietly  
• Keep your hands, feet and objects to yourself  
• Wait in line patiently  
• Stay in your seat while eating  
• Use your inside voice when visiting with friends  
• Eat your own food  
• Clean up your space after eating 

 
Transportation 

 
To ensure the safety of your child, we ask that you watch your child as they 
enter the building when you drop them off.  If you need to come into the school 
for any reason, there is a parking lot at the back of the school facility, located 
on the southwest corner of the school grounds. 
 

• All buses will load and unload in front of the school on 19th Street.  NO 
PARKING IS ALLOWED FROM 7:00 – 9:00 A.M. & 2:30 – 4:00 Oklahoma 
State Law prohibits passing a school bus with its lights flashing. 

• Bus riding is a privilege.  Your child must obey the bus driver and rules 
on the buses (this includes the bus stops). 

• NOTIFY THE COTTERAL OFFICE (282-5928 or 282-5929), if there is to 
be any change in your child’s transportation.  Bus information can be 
obtained by calling the Transportation Department at 282-5919. 

256256



• A.M. drop off and P.M. pick up for students will be on the west side of 
the school.  Drop off in the morning is at the doors on the northwest 
corner.  Traffic will be one way behind the school, entering from 
Cleveland on the south and exiting onto Noble to the north.  Parents are 
encouraged to use the parking lot behind the school if they need to 
come into the building.  This area will be chained from 8:15 to 3:00 
daily so children can safely cross to the playground area throughout the 
day. 

• Morning car riders should only enter through the northwest doors; 
these doors are supervised by a staff member until 8:15. 

• The only doors open after 8:15 for students and parents to enter are the 
northeast doors by the office. 

• Parents needing to check-out students should sign–out students 
through the office and receive a visitor badge and go to the classroom.  

• Parents arriving before 3:00 to pick up students from the classroom 
will remain in the office until dismissal starts.  

• Children need to be picked up by 3:30 p.m.  There is NO 
Supervision after 3:40 p.m.  We know there are emergencies that may 
happen, please contact the school before 3:30 p.m. to make 
arrangement for your child’s pick up. 

 
 
We will not call students out of class to wait for a parent to pick them up.  Students 
must remain in class until parents/guardians are in the office and are ready to check 
them out.  We want the students to be present for as much instructional time as 
possible during the day.  

 
FIELD TRIPS 

 
 
Participation in a field trip is a privilege, not a right.  Throughout the year, 
students are expected to follow rules and procedures while being respectful to 
others.  Listening and being able to follow directions is another expectation as we 
provide a proper learning environment for all students.   If these basic requirements 
are not met on a daily basis your child may not be able to participate in a field 
trip.  When deemed necessary by the building principal, a parent or guardian may 
also be required to attend with their child. 
 

Student Deliveries 
 
 No deliveries from outside companies and/or parents should be made to the 
school. The office will not accept any balloons, flowers or other items. Cotteral 
Elementary School will celebrate during classroom parties. All other 
celebrations should be done outside of school. 
 

257257



Asbestos Information 
  

Asbestos plans are available for viewing during regular school 
hours, Monday thru Friday, by contacting the Director of Operations at the 
Maintenance Dept. located at 200 Crooks Drive, Bldg. #4, Guthrie, OK. 
 

Parent-Student-Teacher Compact 
Cotteral Elementary 

We at Cotteral Elementary School are committed to providing the best education 
possible for each of our students.  It is our goal to give every child the opportunity to 
reach his/her full potential in intellectual, emotional, and physical growth.  We know that 
learning can take place if there is a combination of effort, interest, and motivation on the 
part of the school, the home, and the community, working together toward that end. 
 
This compact is a voluntary agreement and a promise of commitment to help 
____________________________ progress in school, promoting his/her achievement.  We 
believe that this agreement can be fulfilled through our team effort. 
 

As a student, I agree 
to: 

As a parent, I agree to: As a teacher, I agree 
to: 

• Come to school ready to 
learn and work hard. 

• Bring necessary 
materials, completed 
assignments and 
homework. 

• Communicate regularly 
with my parents and 
teachers about my 
school experiences so 
that they can help me to 
be successful in school. 

• Limit my TV watching 
and instead study or 
read every day after 
school. 

• Respect the school, 
classmates, staff, and 
families. 

• Provide a quiet time and 
place for homework and 
monitor TV viewing. 

• Read to my child or 
encourage my child to 
read every day for 20 
minutes. 

• Ensure that my child 
attends school every 
day, gets adequate 
sleep, regular medical 
attention and proper 
nutrition. 

• Regularly monitor my 
child’s progress in 
school. 

• Participate at school in 
activities such as school 
decision making, 
volunteering and/or 
attending parent/teacher 
conferences. 

• Communicate the 
importance of education 
and learning to my child. 

• Respect the school, 
staff, students, and 
families. 

• Teach classes through 
interesting and 
challenging lessons that 
promote student 
achievement. 

• Endeavor to motivate my 
students to learn. 

• Have high expectations 
and help every child to 
develop a love of 
learning. 

• Communicate regularly 
with families about 
student progress. 

• Provide a warm, safe, 
and caring learning 
environment. 

• Provide meaningful, 
daily homework 
assignments to reinforce 
and extend learning (30 
minutes). 

• Participate in 
professional 
development 
opportunities that 
improve teaching and 
learning and support the 
formation of 
partnerships with 
families and the 
community. 

• Actively participate in 
collaborative decision 
making and consistently 
work with families and 
my school colleagues to 
make schools 
accessible and 
welcoming places for 
families which help each 

258258



student achieve the 
school’s high academic 
standards. 

• Respect the school, 
students, and families. 

 
As a team we can work together to carry out this agreement.          Date:  _____________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________  ___________________________________ _______________________________ 
Student Signature                                               Parent Signature                                    Teacher Signature 

 
 

COTTERAL ELEMENTARY 
PARENT AND STUDENT HANDBOOK 

 
Dear Parent/Guardian: 
 
This handbook has been prepared for your information, and to assist you 
with the expectations, responsibilities, guidelines, and procedures 
necessary for your child to be successful at Cotteral.  We hope you will 
use the book and become familiar with its contents.  This will aid us in 
having a very productive year! 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Scot Graham 
Principal 
 
 
 
 
 
PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN THIS TO YOUR CHILD’S TEACHER 
 
I have received and read my Cotteral Elementary Handbook for the         
2016 – 2017 2017 - 2018 school year.  I have gone over its contents with 
my child and will make every effort to ensure that he/she abides by the 
guidelines set forth. 
 
_______________________________________ 
Student Name 
 
 
________________________________________    ________________________ 
Parent/Guardian Signature                                Date 
 
 
 

259259



**ATTACHED TO THIS HANDBOOK YOU WILL FIND A SIGNATURE PAGE FOR 
YOU TO SIGN AND RETURN TO SCHOOL INDICATING THAT YOU HAVE READ 
THE SCHOOL HANDBOOK AND HAVE GONE OVER ITS CONTENTS WITH YOUR 
CHILD.  PLEASE RETURN IT TO SCHOOL AS SOON AS POSSIBLE. 
 
**ALSO ATTACHED TO THIS HANDBOOK IS A PARENT-STUDENT-TEACHER 
COMPACT.  PLEASE READ AND REVIEW THIS WITH YOUR CHILD, SIGN AND 
RETURN TO SCHOOL, AS WELL.** 

260260



 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
2017-2018 
2016-2017 
321 East Noble 

Guthrie, Oklahoma 73044  
 

Phone (405)282-0352 
Fax (405)282-9988 

 
Dani Watson, Principal  

 
 
 

261261



 
 

CENTRAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
Supplemental Handbook 

2016-2017 
2017-2018 

 
The Central Staff is delighted to welcome you and your child to school.  The first day will be one 
that you and your child will always remember.  You, as the parent, can help make the first days 
go smoothly by doing a few things to prepare your child. 

• To make your child more comfortable about going to school, conduct a “dress rehearsal.”  
Practice the best route to the school or bus stop.  Show your child the school grounds.  
Find out the teacher’s name and make sure your child knows it. 

• Do not pass off your child’s doubts and fears.  Try to answer all the questions in a 
positive, reassuring manner.  Talk about school in a friendly way so your child will think 
of it as a friendly place.  Let him/her know there will be friendly people to help on those 
first uncertain days. 

We are now partners, jointly dedicated to helping your child grow into a healthy, happy, fully 
aware person. 
 
A.  GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS MISSION STATEMENT 
 

It is the mission of the Guthrie Public Schools to empower all students with the tools necessary 
to become productive members of society through a cooperative effort between students, home, 
school, and community. 
 
B.  CENTRAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL MISSION STATEMENT 

 

Our mission is to provide ongoing access, for all students, to a variety of teaching tools and 
resources, which will enable our students to become independent learners. 
 
C.  CLASS SCHEDULES 
 

Breakfast      7:30 - 8:10 
Class instruction begins  8:15 
Tardy Bell    8:15 
Lunch A              11:00 – 11:25  11:10 – 11:35 
Recess A    11:25 – 11:50  11:35 - 12:05 
Lunch B             11:30 – 11:55  11:45 – 12:10 
Recess B    11:55 – 12:20  12:10 – 12:40 
(Parents are welcome to eat in the school cafeteria anytime.  Lunch and recess times are subject 
to change.) 
 

Certified staff arrives at school to monitor children starting at 7:30 a.m.  For safety purposes, 
children cannot be dropped off before 7:30.  Children arriving between 7:30 & 8:05 will be sent 
to the gym area.  At 8:05 students will be dismissed to their classrooms.   
 

We have a door security system.  All doors will be locked at 8:15 daily.  If you arrive at school 
after that time, you will need to park your car and walk your child into the school.  To the right 
of the main door, there is a bell attached to the brick.  Please ring the bell and the secretary will 
buzz you in.  Once inside, please go to the office to sign your child in and get a tardy slip to give 

262262



to the classroom teacher.  The doors will remain locked until 3:10.  If you need to pick your child 
up before that time, follow the same procedure as listed above.  If picked up before 3:10, your 
child will be counted tardy for the afternoon.  The office gets hectic at the end of the day with 
phone calls, bus changes, etc.  Please utilize the car rider line or walk-up option which will 
decrease the amount of office traffic.  We will not call kids down at the end of the day on a daily 
basis.   We will also not call students out of class to wait for a parent to pick them up.  Students 
must remain in class until parents/guardians are in the office and are ready to check them out.  
We want the students to be present for as much instructional time as possible during the day.    
 

Dismissal is 3:10. 
 
All visitors and guests will be required to check into the office when they enter the school at 
anytime of the day.  Guests may check in with the office and receive a visitors badge to wear 
while in the school. Guests will also be required to check out with the office when they leave.  
This is for the safety of our students.  Once school has started at 8:15 parents will not be allowed 
to go to classrooms to visit with their child’s teacher.  Instruction starts at this time and we ask 
that it not be interrupted. 
 
D.  CAR RIDER DROP OFF – PICK UP 

 

Car riders are dropped off and picked up on the south side of the building.  Please enter the 
parking lot from Cleveland and exit onto Broad.  Because of the volume of car riders, it is 
imperative that you remain in your car and keep the flow of traffic moving.  If you are the first 
car in the AM or the PM in Central’s car line and you arrive prior to the designated drop off or 
pick up times please make sure you stop at the sign in  yellow line on our parking lot. by the sign 
that indicates where the car line begins.  You MUST leave enough room for other cars to 
maneuver through the parking lot and please do not block the handicap parking spots.  The line 
may begin moving once drop off begins in the morning, or when the teachers bring the students 
out in the PM for dismissal.  If you need to get out and come into the building, please park in a 
parking space to avoid holding up traffic.  We share our parking lot with Cash Saver so please 
avoid parking in their spots which are marked with a C inside a white circle.   

You have been provided with a sign with your child’s name on it to place in your car windshield.  
If several people pick your child up often, please ask for extras.  This will ensure your child’s 
safety and speed up the pick up process.  Until the duty teachers get to know you and your child, 
you will be asked for identification if the provided sign is not present.  If for some reason you (or 
whoever is picking your child up) choose to walk up to get your child, you (or whoever is 
picking your child up) MUST have an ID as well as be listed on the student’s car rider tag. 
 
E.  BUS INFORMATION 

 

• Bus loading and unloading will be on the east side of the school on Ash Street.  Ash 
Street is one-way going south.  We do not encourage you to use that side of the building 
to drop off or pick up your child because it interferes with the bus loading and drop off.  

• Oklahoma State Law prohibits passing a school bus with its lights flashing. 
• Bus riding is a privilege.  Your child must obey the bus driver and rules on the buses and 

at the bus stops. 
• NOTIFY THE CENTRAL OFFICE (282-0352), if there is to be any change in your 

child’s transportation.  Bus information can be obtained by calling the Bus Transportation 
office at 282-5919. 

 

263263



F.  BREAKFAST AND LUNCH 
 

Please send your child’s breakfast and lunch money in a sealed envelope with your child’s name 
and teacher’s name on it.   Indicate how many and which meals you are purchasing (breakfast, 
lunch, or both). 
 

Breakfast is $1.20 $1.30 per day; reduced price is $.30 per day.  Lunch is $2.50 $2.60 per day; 
reduced price is $.40 per day.  Adult meals are available.  Please check with the cafeteria for the 
current cost.  Prices are subject to change.  SCHOOL MEALS CANNOT BE CHARGED.  
Applications and information for free or reduced meals are available in the school office, on the 
Guthrie Public Schools website or you may call 282-5952. If you have questions regarding the 
approval of the free and reduced meal applications please direct these calls to the Child Nutrition 
office.  Their number is 282-5952.  The school cafeteria cannot always answer questions 
regarding the status of these applications.  Parents are welcome to eat with their children.   
 
G.  PROGESS REPORTS, REPORT CARDS, PARENT/TEACHER CONFERENCES 

 

Student progress is reported at the end of each nine weeks period.  Parent teacher conference 
days are set on the school calendar.  These dates are set aside to provide communication between 
parents and teachers.  As always, you may schedule a time to speak with your child’s teacher as 
needed.  Working together, we can provide the very best educational program for our students. 
 
H.  STATE STANDARDS 
During 1st grade every student will be exposed to the State Standards that have been adopted by 
the Oklahoma State Department of Education. To view these standards please visit the following 
website: http://www.ok.gov/sde/. If you do not have internet access, you can request a copy 
from Central Elementary. 
 
I.  DISCIPLINE 
Control and discipline in our school depends upon the responsibility taken by the student, the 
parents, the teacher, the principal and the combined school personnel.  While under the 
supervision of the school the teacher has the same authority as the parent in restraining, 
correcting and controlling the child.  (State law-Sections 125 and 670.) 
 
Each teacher will have their own individual classroom discipline procedures.  These procedures 
will be discussed with you and your child and a list of these procedures will be sent home with 
your child at the beginning of the school year.  Building discipline procedures will be applied 
according to the severity of the rules broken.  Procedures may include: 

• Conference with teacher and student 
• Conference with teacher, student and principal 
• Conference with teacher, student, principal and parent 
• Conference with all of the above and possible disciplinary actions as deemed appropriate 

by the principal 
 
Severe Clause 
Central Elementary is dedicated to providing a safe learning environment for our students.  The 
following behaviors will not be tolerated: 

• Behavior which threatens personal and/or public safety 
• Disruption of students rights to learn 
• Verbal and/or physical abuse of others 

264264

http://www/


• Damage or theft of school or personal property 
• Any additional behaviors outlined in Section F-41 Student Behavior and Discipline 

located in the GPS Policy Manual 
• Bullying will not be tolerated. Please refer to Section F-31 Policy Prohibiting 

Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying and Procedures For Combating These Behaviors 
located in the GPS Policy Manual 

 
Any of these violations shall result in a parent or guardian being contacted and/or a student being 
assigned in school suspension (ISS) or suspension from the school.  The length of the ISS or 
suspension will be assigned by the principal depending on the severity of the behavior.  
Administrators will conduct a suspension conference with the student and parent or guardians 
outlining the suspension and informing parents of their rights according to district policy. 
 
All elementary schools will be utilizing the Responsive Classroom educational approach.  This is 
a research based educational approach associated with greater teacher effectiveness, higher 
student achievement, and improve school climate.  This approach consists of a set of practices 
that build academic and social-emotional skills that can be used with many other programs.  The 
approach helps educators build on competencies in four interrelated domains:  engaging 
academics, positive community, effective management, developmentally responsive teaching.   
 
 

J.  OUTSIDE DELIVERIES 
 

No deliveries from outside companies and/or parents should be made to the school. The office 
will not accept any balloons, flowers or others items. Central Elementary will celebrate during 
the classroom parties. All other celebrations should be done at home. 
 
K.  ATTENDANCE POLICY 
 
It is of the utmost importance that students attend school every day.  Irregular attendance is the 
most frequent cause of unsatisfactory work and school failures.  When a student is unable to 
attend school, parents should notify the school by calling between 8:30am and 10:30am.  Parents 
should give the student’s name and teacher’s name.  If the child went to the Dr. – a note should 
be issued to the school and given to the office.  Assignments not completed due to absence are 
expected to be made up.  If a student is absent 10 consecutive days, the student will be dropped 
from the school roll.  The parent must re-enroll the student upon return to school.  It is the policy 
of Guthrie Board of Education that a student is required to be in attendance a minimum of 90% 
of each semester.  After the fifth and seventh unexcused absence during a semester a letter from 
the principal will be sent home.  After the tenth unexcused absence the parent or guardian will be 
reported to the District Attorney for violation of truancy laws. 
 
L.  Field Trips   
 
Participation in a field trip is a privilege, not a right.  Throughout the year, students are expected 
to follow rules and procedures while being respectful to others.  Listening and being able to 
follow directions is another expectation as we provide a proper learning environment for all 
students.   If these basic requirements are not met on a daily basis your child may not be able to 
participate in a field trip.  When deemed necessary by the building principal, a parent or guardian 
may also be required to attend with their child. 

265265



 
 
M.  ASBESTOS MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 
In accordance with Federal law, Guthrie Public Schools has been inspected and approved for 
asbestos management. Asbestos plans are available for viewing during regular school hours, 
Monday thru Friday, by contacting the Director of Operations at the Maintenance Dept. located 
at 200 Crooks Drive, Bldg. #4, Guthrie, OK.  
 
 
 
**ATTACHED TO THIS HANDBOOK YOU WILL FIND A SIGNATURE PAGE FOR 
YOU TO SIGN AND RETURN TO SCHOOL INDICATING THAT YOU HAVE READ 
THE SCHOOL HANDBOOK AND HAVE GONE OVER ITS CONTENTS WITH YOUR 
CHILD.  PLEASE RETURN IT TO SCHOOL AS SOON AS POSSIBLE.** 
 
**ALSO ATTACHED TO THIS HANDBOOK IS A PARENT-STUDENT-TEACHER 
COMPACT.  PLEASE READ AND REVIEW THIS WITH YOUR CHILD, SIGN AND 
RETURN TO SCHOOL, AS WELL.** 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

266266



 
Central Elementary 

Parent and Student Handbook 
 

Dear Parent/Guardian: 
 
This handbook has been prepared for your information and to assist you with the 
expectations, responsibilities, guidelines, and procedures necessary for your child 
to be successful in the first grade.  We hope you will use the book and become 
familiar with its contents.  This will aid us in having a very productive year! 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Dani Watson 
Principal 
 
 
 
PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN THIS TO YOUR CHILD’S TEACHER 
 
I have received and read my Central Elementary Handbook for the 2016-2017 
2017-2018 school year.  I have gone over its contents with my child and will 
make every effort to ensure that he/she abides by the guidelines set forth. 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________  ____________________ 
Parent/Guardian Signature    Date 
 
 
 

267267



FOGARTY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
SITE INFORMATION, PROCEDURES, AND RULES 

2016-2017 2017-2018 
 
SCHOOL HOURS 
Class time: 8:15 a.m. – 3:10 p.m. 
 
TRAFFIC CONTROL 
It is our aim to keep traffic moving safely and smoothly at Fogarty. All decisions regarding drop-
off and pick-up are made based on the safety of all students. During morning drop-off and 
afternoon pick-up, the designated streets are one way streets. Please utilize the designated pick-up 
and drop-off areas, and do not allow your child to cross the street in front of moving vehicles. 
Your cooperation in this matter is appreciated. 
 
MORNING DROP-OFF 
Fogarty Elementary uses the south entry for the parent drop-off between 7:30-8:15 a.m. To drop 
off your child, please enter Jefferson at the east end and proceed west to Wentz. Children are to be 
let out along the yellow curb. For the safety of all students, please do not attempt to enter 
Jefferson Street from the west, thus requiring your child to cross Jefferson Street. PLEASE 
WATCH YOUR CHILD ENTER THE BUILDING. After 7:15 a.m., the north side of the school 
is zoned for bus loading and unloading ONLY. Do not drop off your child in this area. 
 
AFTERNOON PICK-UP   ALL STUDENTS MUST BE PICKED UP NO LATER THAN 3:40  

• 3rd grade students are picked up on Jefferson in the same location as the morning drop off. 
Parents picking up students in the third grade car line should drive north on Broad, and 
then turn left onto Jefferson. Students can be picked up along the yellow curb. All traffic 
should flow west on Jefferson. 

 
• 2nd grade pick up is on the east side of the playground. Parents should turn off Noble onto 

Ash. Take Ash to Jefferson. Turn left onto Jefferson and drive one block west to Broad. 
Turn right onto Broad and drive down to the gate by the covered area on the playground. 
After you pick up your child, exit east using Jackson. Please yield to the bus traffic.  

 
• All students will be issued a car tag that should be prominently displayed in the window 

when picking a child up.  Please make sure you get one for each vehicle that may be used 
for pick up.   
 

• Walk-Ups – All students will have a card that states who can pick them up with phone 
numbers in case of emergency.  If you walk up to get your child you MUST come to the 
front door and wait outside the building until your child is called up and released to you.  
You will need to bring the tag that is issued to you by Fogarty that will have your child’s 
name written on it.  You may hold the card up for the duty teacher to read your child’s 
name.  They will call your child to the door and release them to you.  If you do not have 
the card or photo ID that can be matched with your child’s pick-up card, then you will 
have to go to the office to verify you are on the child’s lists in our computer system.  DO 
NOT ENTER THE BUILDING AND TAKE YOUR CHILD FROM THE WALK-UP 
LINE. 

 
 
 
 
 
 268268



FOGARTY SCHOOL PROCEDURES 
• Children arriving to school between 7:30 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. will be sent to the auditorium.  

On mornings that the weather is nice, they may go to the playground instead.  There will 
be supervision at either place.   At 8:00 a.m., there will be a morning assembly and then 
students will be dismissed to their classrooms.  

• Breakfast is served from 7:30 a.m. to 8:15 a.m. Students eating breakfast at school should 
eat immediately upon arrival.  

• Toys, skateboards, roller blades, Healy’s, trading cards, music devices, electronic games, 
pets, etc., are not allowed at school with the exception of special activities that the 
principal and teacher are aware of and for which they have given permission. This covers 
any non-instructional items. These items cause a distraction to the learning process. If lost 
or stolen, the school will not investigate the missing item.  

• Food, candy, gum, and drinks are not allowed at school with the exception of special 
activities that the principal and/or teachers are aware of and have given permission. 
 

 
ATTENDANCE/TARDIES/ABSENCES 

• Students arriving to class after 8:15 a.m. will be considered tardy. When a parent brings 
their child to school after 8:15 a.m., they need to escort their child into the building and 
sign him or her in at the office.  A tardy slip will be issued by the secretary. 

• Before taking students off school grounds during the school day, parents must check out 
their child through the school office. Leaving before 3:10 will result in a tardy.  

• A half-day absence will result for students who are in attendance fewer than two hours for 
the morning session or fewer than two hours for the afternoon session. 

• If you need to check your child out early, you will need to come into the office and sign 
them out.  Students will not be called out of class to wait in the office to be picked up.  We 
will only call students out of class once a care giver arrives to sign them out. This will 
allow students to remain in the learning environment as long as possible before being 
checked out.   

• When a student is unable to attend school, parents should notify the school by calling 
between 8:30 a.m. and 10:30 a.m. If requested, missed work can be picked up after 2:30 
p.m. in the school office on the day of absence. 

• It is the policy of the Guthrie Board of Education that a student is required to be in 
attendance a minimum of 90% each semester. After the ninth unexcused absence during a 
semester, the parent or guardian will be reported to the School Resource Officers and/or 
District Attorney for violation of truancy laws. 

 
CAFETERIA GUIDELINES 

• Lunch and breakfast monies are to be paid to the cafeteria cashier upon arriving to school. 
• School meals cannot be charged. 
• The cafeteria starts serving breakfast at 7:30 a.m. 
• Cafeteria Snack Shack Items are a separate charge.  This is not the same “Snack Shack” 

that PTO sponsors on Fridays. 
 
FIELD TRIP GUIDELINES 
 

• Participation in a field trip is privilege, not a right.  Throughout the year, students are 
expected to follow rules and procedures while being respectful to others. Listening and 
being able to follow directions is another expectation as we provide a proper learning 
environment for all students.  If these basic requirements are not met on a daily basis your 
child may not be able to participate in a field trip.  When deemed necessary by building 
principal, a parent or guardian may also be required to attend with their child. 

 269269



 
 
 
 
HOMEWORK 
Homework falls into three major categories: It may provide for completion of unfinished class 
work, for additional practice and reinforcement of essential skills, or for enrichment and extension 
of school experiences. Parents can help their child by arranging a quiet, comfortable place for the 
students to work and by seeing that assignments are completed and turned in on time. Homework 
is to be given at the discretion of the teacher. It is intended to be an extension of the learning that 
takes place in school. Teachers will assign a reasonable amount of homework when necessary 
to practice skills that have already been taught in class, not to exceed thirty (30) minutes per 
day.  
 
PARENT RESOURCE CENTER 
Fogarty is proud to offer a Parent Resource Center. The center has many items to help parents 
with different issues they may be facing with their child. The inventory materials include books, 
bibliography books, videos, games, and audio tapes. Some of the popular topics are ADD, 
behavior problems, medicating students, step parenting, divorce, single parenting, student 
responsibility, learning disabilities, and many more issues that are facing families today. Items are 
available to parents every school day for overnight or weekly checkout. Please see the librarian or 
your child’s teacher to take advantage of this wonderful resource. 
 
Social and Behavior Expectations 
 
As we enter the school year, we are happy to let you know we will utilize a positive behavior 
approach at Fogarty Elementary School.  The premise of The Responsive Classroom approach is 
to create a safe and effective positive learning environment for every child by explicitly teaching 
behavioral and social expectations.  Research has proven that schools are successful when they 
help students grow academically, socially, and emotionally.  By setting forth clear social and 
behavioral expectations and holding students accountable for the following school wide 
expectations; we are confident we will see an increase in student learning and a decrease in 
classroom disruptions. 
   
This is a brief overview of our system.  Our goal is to continue to have open lines of 
communication between home and school.  Please do not hesitate to contact our school if you 
have questions.   
  
Thank you for your partnership in teaching the children.  We are looking forward to a fabulous 
Fogarty year! 
  
It is our goal to make the Fogarty Expectations as clear and specific as possible.  What you will 
find on the list of expectations is what you would expect to see happening in every physical 
setting at Fogarty School.  Since the system is set up to promote a positive environment, you will 
find it is written to advise children on what it looks like to be caring, safe, and ready to learn at 
Fogarty Elementary School.  Our staff will continuously help our children understand and learn 
the behavior expectations we have in place.  We will explicitly teach, model, and practice the 
behavioral expectations in order to ensure our students are able to apply them in all settings.  
  
Please review the list of expectations below.  It would be wonderful if you could post the 
expectations in a visible place in your home.  This will serve as a continuous reminder for your 
children.   
 
 270270



 
The Bathroom 

• Respect others’ privacy (stay away from occupied stalls) 
• Keep feet on the floor 
• Use level 1 voices 
• Flush, wash, and go 
• Take turns 
• Use walking feet 
• Return to class or line quickly 
• Report problems 
• Throw away trash 

The Hallway 
• Walk in a single line 
• Stay with your group or class 
• Walk silently 
• Go directly to your destination 
• Keep hands, feet and objects to yourself 

The Playground 
• Share 
• Take turns 
• No play fighting 
• Take care of equipment 
• Report problems 
• Respond to whistles 

The Auditorium 
• Listen 
• Eyes on speaker 
• Voices at a 0 level 
• Follow exit and entering procedures 
• Seat to seat, back to back 

The Cafeteria 
• Show appreciation (say please and thank you) 
• Use level 1 voice 
• Clean up after yourself 
• Carry tray with two hands 
• Wait your turn 
• Wait ready in line 
• Follow enter and exit procedures 
• Keep feet under table 

All elementary schools will be utilizing the Responsive Classroom educational approach.  This is 
a research based educational approach associated with greater teacher effectiveness, higher 271271



student achievement, and improve school climate.  This approach consists of a set of practices that 
build academic and social-emotional skills that can be used with many other programs.  The 
approach helps educators build on competencies in four interrelated domains:  engaging 
academics, positive community, effective management, developmentally responsive teaching.   

                
STUDENT DISCIPLINE/SUSPENSION 
Each teacher will have his/her own individual classroom discipline procedures. These individual 
procedures will be discussed with your child and a list of these procedures will be sent home for 
your signature at the beginning of the school year. Building discipline procedures will be used 
according to the severity of the rule or rules broken. Procedures may include: 

• Parents contacted by phone  
• Conference with the teacher and principal  
• Lunch or recess detention with the principal 
• In-School Supervision 
• Suspension from school 

 
Suspension 
When other forms of discipline have been used and the student’s behavior is not modified, 
suspension can occur. Anytime a student is physically endangering others or vandalizing school 
property, immediate suspension will occur. Field trips, special events, and parties are a privilege 
to attend. Students may lose these privileges if they are exhibiting negative behavior. If students 
are suspended from school, their work may be picked up each day at 2:30 p.m. in the office or sent 
home with a sibling. 
 
Discipline procedures fighting/bullying/harassment 
Fighting will not be tolerated. Fighting is defined as any situation in which one student makes 
aggressive contact in any manner on another student. The administrator will take disciplinary 
action if either person involved fits the above definition. Intimidation, threats, or harassment 
directed toward other students will not be tolerated. All students are expected to treat others with 
respect at school. Infractions may be handled in the following manner for all students involved. 

1st offense – 3 days out of school suspension  
2nd offense – 5 days out of school suspension 
3rd offense – 10 days out of school suspension 
 
**Each infraction will be dealt with on an individual basis.  The school 
    Administration is unable to discuss discipline consequences for any  
    child with anyone other than that child’s parents.** 
 

Any additional offenses - The principal will decide the length of suspension after the third offense. 
This might include suspension for the remainder of the semester and the following semester. 
 
Please visit Section F-41 Student Behavior and Discipline located in the GPS Policy Manual 

 
Bullying will not be tolerated. Please refer to Section F-31 Policy Prohibiting Harassment, 
Intimidation and Bullying and Procedures For Combating These Behaviors located in the GPS 
Policy Manual 
 
 
 
 
 
 272272



Fogarty Elementary Parent - Student - Teacher Compact 

We at Fogarty Elementary School are committed to providing the best education possible for each of our students. It is 
our goal to give every child the opportunity to reach his/her full potential in intellectual, emotional and physical growth. We 
know that learning can take place if there is a combination of effort, interest, and motivation on the part of the school, the 
home, and the community working together toward that end. 

This compact is a voluntary agreement and a promise of commitment to help _____________________progress in 
school, promoting his/her achievement. We believe that this agreement can be fulfilled through our team effort. 

 

As a student I agree to: As a parent I agree to: As a teacher I agree to: 
      •    Come to school ready to •    Provide a quiet time and •     Teach classes through 

            learn and work hard. place for homework and interesting and challenging 
        •    Bring necessary materials, monitor TV viewing. lessons that promote 

completed assignments and •     Read to my child or student achievement. 
homework. encourage my child to read •     Endeavor to motivate my 

 •    Know and follow the every day (20 minutes K- students to learn. 
    school and class rules. 3). •     Have high expectations 
•     Communicate regularly •    Ensure that my child and help every child to 

with my parents and attends school every day, develop a love of learning. 
teachers about my school gets adequate sleep, •     Communicate regularly 
experiences so that they regular medical attention with families about student 
can help me be successful and proper nutrition. progress. 
in school. •     Regularly monitor my •     Provide a warm, safe, and 

•     Limit my TV watching and child's progress in school. caring learning 
instead study or read every •    Participate at school in environment. 
day after school. activities such as school •     Provide meaningful, daily 

•    Respect the school, decision making, homework assignments to 
classmates, staff and volunteering and/or reinforce and extend 
families. attending parent/teacher learning (30 minutes 1-3). 

 conferences. •     Participate in professional 
 •     Communicate the development opportunities 
 importance of education that improve teaching and 
 and learning to my child. learning and support the 
 •     Respect the school, staff, formation of partnerships 
 students and families.      with families and the 

     community.                 
• Actively participate in 

collaborative decision 
making and consistently 
work with families and my 
school colleagues to make 
schools accessible and 
welcoming places for 
families which help each 
student achieve the 
school's high academic 
standards. 

      students and families. 
As a team, we can work together to carry out this agreement

 
 
 
 

 
_____________________________  _____________________________ _____________________________ 

Teacher’s Signature                                        Parent’s Signature                                          Student’s Signature 

273273



 
FOGARTY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

SITE INFORMATION, PROCEDURES, AND RULES 
2016-2017 2017-2018 

 
 
Please sign and return this form to your child’s classroom teacher within the first 
week of school. This form indicates that you have read the school handbook and 
have gone over its contents with your child.  
 
 I HAVE READ AND GONE OVER THE GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOL 
ELEMENTARY HANDBOOK AND THE FOGARTY HANDBOOK CONTENTS 
WITH MY CHILD. 
 
 I WILL WORK WITH THE SCHOOL PERSONNEL TO ENFORCE THE 
SCHOOL RULES. 
 
 I have read the Discipline Procedure for fighting/bullying and or harassment and 
understand the consequences of these behaviors. 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: __________________________________________________ 
Parent / Guardian 
 
Date: ____________________________ 

274274



 
G.U.E.S. SITE INFORMATION, PROCEDURES, AND RULES 

       2016-2017   2017-2018 
    
A.  SCHOOL HOURS  
Guthrie Upper Elementary hours are from 8:15-3:10.  Please have your child here by 8:10.  If they 
are not in class by 8:15 they will be tardy.  Doors do not open and students are not supervised until 
7:30 am.  Please do not bring children to school before 7:30 am.  Students that are walkers or bike 
riders will be dismissed once the car rider line has ended.  Bus and car riding students will be 
dismissed at 3:10.  Parents, please do not double park in front of the building.  Also, pedestrians 
have the right of way.  
  
B.  GUTHRIE UPPER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PROCEDURES   

1. Please eat breakfast immediately upon arrival at school or have a seat in the hallway.   
The students are to remain in the assigned areas until 8:00.  They will then go to their   
classrooms.  

2. Students, on the playground, are to line up immediately when the bell rings and stand quietly.  
3. Students must have a pass to be in the hall during the school day. (Example – lab     

class, library, restrooms, office, phone, etc.).  
4. Students need to have permission from the office before they leave school grounds.  

Parents may sign them out in the office or notify the school giving permission for their child to 
leave.  

5. If a student is sick and will be absent from school parents should call between 8:30   
and 10:30 to report the absence.  If requested, missed work can be picked up after 2:30   
in the office.  

6. Skateboards, roller blades, trading cards, radios, music devices, toys, electronic games, 
spinners, etc. are not allowed at school with the exception of special activities that the 
principal and teacher are aware of and have given permission.  This covers any 
non-instructional items.  These items cause a distraction to the learning process.  If damaged, 
lost or stolen the school will not investigate the missing item.  

7. Food, candy, gum, and drinks are not allowed at school with the exception of special activities 
that the principal and/or teachers are aware of and have given permission. Water in a clear 
container is allowed in the classroom.  All other beverages will only be allowed in the 
cafeteria. 

8. We understand the need for students to have cell phones for safety purposes.  During the 
school day, the cell phone must be turned off.  There will be disciplinary actions if a student 
uses a cell phone during the school day.  If a parent needs to reach their child they may call 
the school office, 282-5924, and we will call for the student.  GUES will not be responsible 
for lost, stolen, or damaged cell phones.   

 
C.  HOMEWORK  
Homework falls into three major categories.  It may provide for completion of unfinished classwork, 
for additional practice and reinforcement of essential skills, or for enrichment and extension of school 
experiences. We believe that children in the intermediate grades should have some responsibility for 
completing independent work during non-class time.  It is an extension of the learning that takes 

275275



place in school.  Parents can help their children by arranging a quiet, comfortable place for the 
students to work and by seeing that assignments are completed and turned in on time.   
  
Homework is to be given at the discretion of the teacher.  It is intended to extend learning.  Teachers 
will assign a reasonable amount of homework, not to exceed twenty (20) minutes per subject per 
night, or not to exceed a total of one (1) hour for all subjects.   
 
Completion of Work  
If students do not complete work during class they are expected to take that work home and complete 
it at home. Incomplete work will result in a zero.  Any incomplete homework may result in the 
student attending lunch/recess detention. 
  
D.  STUDENT DISCIPLINE/SUSPENSION  
Each teacher will have his/her own individual classroom discipline procedures.  These individual 
procedures will be discussed with your child and a list of these procedures will be sent home with 
your child at the beginning of the school year.  Building discipline procedures will be used according 
to the severity of the rule or rules broken.   
Procedures may include:  
• Parents contacted by phone.  
• Grade level recess detention. 
• Conference with the principal.  
• After School Detention: a detention program (3:30-4:30).  
• Saturday school: an alternative school detention program (8:00-12:00).  
• In-school supervision: 1st offense 3 days, 2nd offense 5 days, 3rd offense 10 days  
 
  
Suspension  
When other forms of discipline have been used and the student’s behavior is not modified then 
suspension will occur. Anytime a student is physically endangering others or vandalizing school 
property this will may lead to immediate suspension. Field trips, special events, and parties are a 
privilege to attend.  Students may lose these privileges if they are exhibiting negative behavior or 
poor work habits at school.  
  
If students are suspended from school their work may be picked up each day at 2:30 in the office or 
sent home with a sibling. We do not want any student to get behind in their schoolwork and hope they 
will come back caught up and ready to start the instructional day without any missing work. If parents 
cannot pick up the work the students will have a day plus another day to make up the missing work.  
  
 
Field Trips 
Participation in a field trip is a privilege, not a right. Throughout the year, students are expected to 
follow rules and procedures while being respectful to others.  Listening and being able to follow 
directions is another expectation as we provide a proper learning environment for all students.  If 
these basic requirements are not met on a daily basis your child may not be able to participate in a 
field trip.  When deemed necessary by the building principal, a parent or guardian may also be 
required to attend with their child. 

276276



Discipline procedures for specific problems:  
  
Fighting/Bullying/Harassment/Racial Comments  
Fighting will not be tolerated at G.U.E.S. due to the chance of injury and/or property damage. Fighting 
is defined as any situation in which one student makes aggressive contact in any manner on another 
student. The administrator will take disciplinary action if either person involved fits the above 
definition. Intimidation, threats, or harassment directed toward other students and/or school staff will 
not be tolerated. All students are expected to treat others with respect at school. Infractions may be 
handled in the following manner for all students involved.  
1st offense – 3 days out-of-school suspension   
2nd offense – 5 days out-of-school suspension   
3rd offense – 10 days out-of-school suspension   
Any additional offenses - The principal will decide the length of suspension after the third offense.  
This might include out of school suspension for the remainder of the semester and the following 
semester.  
 
Please refer to Section F-41 Student Behavior and Discipline located in the GPS Policy Manual on the 
district website. 
 
Bullying will not be tolerated. Please refer to Section F-31 Policy Prohibiting Harassment, 
Intimidation and Bullying And Procedures For Combating These Behaviors located in the GPS Policy 
Manual on the district website.  
 
All elementary schools will be utilizing the Responsive Classroom educational approach.  This is a 
research based educational approach associated with greater teacher effectiveness, higher student 
achievement, and improve school climate.  This approach consists of a set of practices that build 
academic and social-emotional skills that can be used with many other programs.  The approach helps 
educators build on competencies in four interrelated domains:  engaging academics, positive 
community, effective management, developmentally responsive teaching.   
  
Playground Discipline  
A safe and bully-free playground is expected at GUES.  Any students who are not following 
procedures or not exhibiting proper conduct will have their names added to the “Recess Discipline 
Sheet”. One of the duty teachers will pick up the “Recess Discipline Sheet” from the office at the 
beginning of each recess.  If a student’s name is on the sheet, the student will need to serve the recess 
in a designated area.      
  
Playground Rules  
It will be the option of the duty teacher to suspend dangerous play.  Students are to practice good 
judgment and safety standards at all times.  The principal may suspend any recess activity or game 
that they see as unsafe for the length of time deemed necessary.  
A.  Students must ask a teacher’s permission to get a ball that has gone into the street.             
B.  For student’s safety, there are to be no contact sports at any time.  Touch football, soccer games, 
basketball, and tetherball games are allowed during lunch recess.  For safety reasons, hard balls and 
wall ball games will not be allowed.                                              
C.  Students must play only within the playground boundaries.  
D.  Creating a danger to others is not permitted.  

277277



E.  Due to safety there will be no penny drops from the monkey bars.  
F.  Jumping from bar to bar is dangerous. It is not allowed on monkey bars.  
G.  No games or activities that could result in injury or which actions are not appropriate for school. 
   
Cafeteria Discipline  
The cafeteria is a nice place for the students to relax and enjoy a good meal. Talking with friends is 
fine as long as the cafeteria does not get too loud. At times our cafeteria gets too loud and the duty 
teachers need to get it quieter. The first step is to turn the lights off and the talking needs to stop 
immediately. When it has been quiet for a few minutes the lights will go back on and students may 
resume talking in lower voices. If the noise level goes back up the lights will be turned off until the 
duty teacher comes and takes the students outside to recess. Some helpful hints to a quiet cafeteria are 
to speak with an inside voice, only talk to the people that sit next to you, and refrain from disruptive 
behavior. Students may receive an After School Detention if they keep talking when the lights are off 
in the cafeteria.  
Lunch Room  
A. Lunch and breakfast monies are to be paid to the appropriate person immediately upon arrival at 
school.  
 B. Before leaving the cafeteria, each student must clean his/her area.  
 C. Food and/or drinks may not be taken from the cafeteria unless arrangements are made by a    
classroom teacher.  
 D. Appropriate behavior is expected when standing in line in the cafeteria.  
   
  
Hall Discipline  
If a student is talking, misbehaving, running, etc. in the hall a contact slip will be issued to the student.  
The contact slip will list the punishment according to the severity of the problem.  The punishments 
may include the student’s name recorded on the “Recess Discipline Sheet”, or they may be assigned 
an After School Detention. These punishments are according to the severity of the problem.    
  
E.  TARDY/EXCESSIVE ABSENCES  
School begins at 8:15.  If a student is not inside the classroom by 8:15 they will be considered tardy. 
A parent must sign their child into the building after the 8:15 bell. A student will also be charged with 
a tardy if the student is checked out prior to the end of the school day (3:10 pm).  An excused tardy 
will only be permitted if a Doctor’s note accompanies the student late for school and the parent signs 
the student into school. After a student has acquired 10 tardies within a semester they will have an 
After School Detention.  After a student has acquired 15 tardies within a semester they will receive a 
Saturday School Detention.  Saturday School will be re-assigned following each additional 5 tardies.  
After a student has acquired 5 tardies within a semester they will receive a warning.  When a student 
reaches 10 tardies, they will be assigned Lunch/Recess Detention in the ISS room for one day.  After 
a student has acquired 15 tardies within a semester they will receive a week of Lunch/Recess 
Detention in the ISS room.  If a student acquires 20 tardies in a semester, they will be assigned After 
School Detention.  Any tardies beyond 20 within a semester may be addressed by Saturday School or 
ISS. Six tardies will equal an absence.  
 
There will be times that GUES offers an “incentive” reward.  Participation in the incentive will be 
dependent upon student behavior and attendance.  In this situation “excused” and “unexcused” will 
apply to the expected attendance rate.   

278278



  
ABSENCES, ATTENDANCE, & TARDIES 

 

It is of utmost importance that students attend school every day. Irregular attendance is the most 
frequent cause of unsatisfactory work and school failures. When a student is unable to attend school, 
parents should notify the school by calling between 8:30 a.m. and 10:30 a.m. Parents should give the 
student's name and teacher's name. Assignments not completed due to an absence are expected to 
be made up. If a student is absent 10 consecutive days, the student will be dropped from the school 
roll. The parent must re-enroll the student upon return to school. It is the policy of the Guthrie Board 
of Education that a student is required to be in attendance a minimum of 90% of each semester.  

 
F.  TRAFFIC CONTROL  
It is our aim to keep traffic moving safely and smoothly in front of the school.  All cars should turn 
west off of Walnut onto GUES Circle Drive.  Parents should let their child out and pick the child up 
in the marked loading/unloading zones in front of the building.  These zones will be clearly marked 
with paint or signs. Drop –off in front of the building will begin at the south end of the sidewalk and 
extend the length of the sidewalk. Multiple cars may unload at once to speed the process along. 
Pick-up will start at the front of the curb by the walkway and extend west along the curb for 4th and 6th 
graders.  5th grade students (and anyone who rides with a 5th grader) are to be picked up on the east 
side of GUES.  The cars are to drive south on Walnut and students will begin loading at the pick-up 
sign. This way several students may load/unload at the same time. Please do not let your child out in 
the front parking lot and have them walk across the walking zone made for teachers. This will 
alleviate students crossing in front of moving vehicles.  The parent can exit onto BlueJay Alley, 
which takes them to Crooks Drive or they may circle around in the front parking lot and exit back onto 
Walnut. Please do not drive around cars that are letting students out of their vehicle or pass other 
vehicles on Walnut.  Walnut is a two-way street.   Always be aware of students that are walking, 
riding bikes, or going to their car.   Parents are not to let students off or pick students up on Walnut, 
at the high school, in the 6th grade parking lot, or by the GUES bus zone.  Buses unload on the west 
side of the building and students enter through the cafeteria doors.  Please do not drop off car riding 
students in or around this bus loading/unloading area. 
 
G.  GIFTED/TALENTED POLICY  
Guthrie Upper Elementary School’s committee will identify students for the gifted/talented program 
by reviewing I.Q. scores (97% or above). Letters will be sent to parents of students who qualify giving 
them the option for the participation in the Gifted and Talented Program. Parents who do not want 
their child to participate will sign a waiver, which will be kept on file at Guthrie Upper Elementary 
School.   
  
H.  PARENT RESOURCE CENTER   
G.U.E.S. is proud to offer a parent resource center. The center has over 115 items on inventory to help 
parents with different issues they may be facing with their child. The inventory materials include 
books, bibliotherapy books, videos, games, and audio tapes. Some of the popular topics are ADD, 
behavior problems, medicating students, step parenting, divorce, single parenting, student 
responsibility, learning disabilities, and many more issues that are facing families today. Items are 

279279



available to parents every school day for overnight or weekly checkout. Please take advantage of this 
wonderful resource.   
  
I.  SCHOOL CREED  
I am unique!  
There is no one in the world exactly like me therefore I can make responsible choices, share my 
knowledge and abilities with others, and be a successful, productive citizen of our world.  
I accept my country’s gift of education and believe with it I can achieve greater knowledge.  
I believe by the power of my mind I can learn what is known and discover what is yet unknown.  
My attitude, determination, and courage will measure the level of my success.  
My actions show that I respect the rights of others to achieve their goals, as I continue to achieve my 
goals.  
I believe in my abilities!  
Today I will be Respectful, Responsible, Safe and I will strive for success.  
 
J.  Visitors at GUES 
Visitors at GUES must enter the building through the front doors.  A doorbell system is in place and a 
school secretary will unlock the door after acknowledging guests.  Once in the building all guests are 
required to check in at the office and wear a visitor’s badge while in the building.  All of these 
precautions are for the safety of our students. 
 
K.  Outside Deliveries 
Outside deliveries from outside companies and/or parents will be accepted only if there is parental 
help to assist in the collection, organization, and distribution.  Items may be held in the office and 
delivered to the students within the last hour of the day.  
 
L.  Listed below are activities that have been available to GUES students in recent years.   
(Availability of such activities is dependent upon securing an activity sponsor.)   
  
                 ACADEMIC TEAMS  
The Upper Elementary School fields a 5th grade and a 6th grade academic team. Each year students try 
out for the teams. Once selected the teams practice throughout the year. They attend several academic 
meets during the year. In the past our academic teams have experienced success by bringing home the 
district championship trophy.  
    
                   HONOR CHOIR  
We are very proud of our Honor Choir program at G.U.E.S. Early in the fall students can try out for 
our school choir. There is a set limit of students that can make it. Once a student is in Honor Choir 
they have to work very hard. First, a student has to maintain their grades and have good behavior at 
school to stay eligible. Then they practice 3-4 times a week in preparation of concerts and contests. 
Throughout the school year the choir participates in programs at various events around the state. Our 
Honor Choir usually receives excellent ratings at contests they attend. Each year several of our choir 
members receive individual honors for outstanding achievement.   
 

280280



281281



282282



283283



284284



         Guthrie Public Schools BID TABULATION 28-Apr-17

         District Mowing

COMPANY HI SCHOOL JR HIGH GUES FOGARTY CENTRAL COTTERAL FAVER OPTN/TRAN ADMIN BASEBALL

Ben's Spraying $600.00 $225.00 $450.00 $200.00 $100.00 $150.00 $300.00 $400.00 $100.00 $100.00

Guthrie Lawn Care NO BID NO BID NO BID NO BID NO BID $120.00 $275.00 $375.00 $125.00 $90.00

Hudson Lawn Care $395.00 $120.00 $495.00 $145.00 $95.00 $120.00 $195.00 $240.00 $95.00 $95.00

Swift Creek Lawn Care $520.00 $125.00 $420.00 $180.00 $85.00 $150.00 $250.00 $240.00 $110.00 $75.00

SourceOne NO BID NO BID NO BID NO BID NO BID NO BID NO BID NO BID NO BID NO BID

285285



286286



287287



288288



289289



290290



           
GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS WELLNESS POLICY 

 
 
A significant amount of research exists showing the important roles nutrition and physical health play in student 
learning.  To increase the likelihood for students to achieve their full academic potential, the district is committed to 
promoting health and wellness in all its school sites.  This policy outlines the district’s goals and procedures to ensure: 
 

 Students have access to healthy foods at school in accordance with federal and state nutrition 
standards 

 
 Students receive quality nutrition education to help them develop lifelong healthy eating behaviors 
 
 Students have opportunities to be physically active before, during, and after school 
 
 Individual school sites promote nutrition, physical activity and other behaviors which encourage 

wellness 
 
 The community is welcome in the district’s wellness program 
 
 The smooth operation of the district’s wellness program  
 

The board encourages staff to engage in healthy eating and appropriate physical activity since staff members serve as 
role models for district students. 

 
District Wellness Committee Membership and Leadership 

 
The district’s wellness program will be coordinated by a District Wellness Officer, to be assigned by the 
Superintendent.  Each building principal will annually designate one (1) individual at their school site to be a liaison 
to the district’s wellness committee which will meet at least once each semester.  The name of the site liaison for each 
building will be publicized on the district’s website, in school newsletters and by other means as is determined to be 
appropriate.  Individual sites will publicize the name and contact information for their site liaison in school newsletters, 
as a part of routine parent updates, and through other appropriate methods. 
 
Although the district’s wellness program is coordinated by the District Wellness Officer, the program will be based 
on the work of the site safe and healthy schools committees.  Committees will meet once each semester during the 
school year for the purpose of reviewing existing wellness activities, brainstorming new activities, reviewing and 
assessing the district’s wellness policies and procedures, and related actions in order to make recommendations to the 
district wellness committee.  The district wellness committee will then consider the recommendations and findings of 
site committees for the purpose of implementing appropriate activities, programs, and policies at the district level. 
 
Membership on the site safe and healthy schools committees will be open to interested parents, students, health care 
providers, social service workers and school representatives.  The committees will include, minimally, the site liaison, 
a school administrator, and a PE teacher. 
 
Each site safe and healthy schools committee will also focus on providing wellness resources and strategies to teachers.  
This will be accomplished by making recommendations to the site principal regarding health, wellness, integrating 
kinesthetic learning and the overall connection between wellness and learning. 
 
 
 

291291



Assessment, Planning and Reporting 
 
The District Wellness Officer is responsible for conducting a district assessment using tools available through the 
Centers for Disease Control.  Once the assessment is completed, the committee will develop and maintain a plan to 
implement and manage the district’s wellness program.  The district’s plan will be specific for each site (although the 
site plans may be substantially similar) and delineate the roles, responsibilities, actions and timelines for wellness 
activities.  It will also include specific goals and objectives for nutrition standards for all foods and beverages available 
on campus, outside food/beverage marketing, nutrition promotion and education, physical activity and education and 
other wellness activities.  The plan will be regularly assessed, reviewed and updated in light of district needs, emerging 
research and to ensure compliance with the latest local, state and federal standards. 
 
The District Wellness Officer will also prepare a triennial progress assessment for the board. This assessment will 
include information such as the extent to which individual schools are in compliance with the policy, how the district’s 
program compares with federal standards and a description of the overall progress in attaining the district’s goals. 
 
A copy of all assessments, plans and progress reports will be available through the District Wellness Officer.  The 
District Wellness Officer will also maintain documentation demonstrating efforts to involve non-employees in the 
committee, minutes from the committee meetings, notes regarding wellness activities conducted, and information 
regarding how this information was made available to families and community members. 
 
Open Communication 
 
The District Wellness Officer, with input and assistance from site liaisons, is expected to make an effort to involve all 
district families, staff, and interested community members in the district’s wellness initiatives.  This includes providing 
information to these parties regarding health and wellness, the district’s policy and plan, activities, involvement 
opportunities, school meal standards and available child nutrition programs.  This information will be communicated 
through a variety of methods, including publication in newsletters and on the website, at enrollment, back to school 
nights and similar activities. 
 
School Meals 
 
The district participates in the following USDA child nutrition programs: 
 

 National School Lunch Program (NSLP) 
 School Breakfast Program (SBP) 
 Summer Food Service Program (SFSP) 

 
Participation in these programs is designed to ensure students receive plenty of fruits, vegetables, whole grains, and 
fat-free/low-fat milk to meet their nutrition needs.  School meals are also calorically appropriate, moderate in sodium, 
low in saturated fat and have zero grams of trans fat.   
 
Goals of the district’s meal program include: 
 

 Improving overall health 
 Mitigating childhood obesity 
 Modeling healthy eating in support of lifelong eating patterns   
 Accommodating cultural food preference and special dietary needs 

 
School meals: 
 

 Are accessible to all students  
 Are appealing and attractive to children 

292292



 Are served in clean and pleasant settings 
 Meet or exceed current nutrition requirements established by local, state, and federal statutes and 

regulations  
 Promote healthy food and beverage choices by: 
 

 Displaying whole fruit options in attractive bowls or baskets 
 Making sliced or cut fruit available daily 
 Displaying daily fruit options in students’ line of sight/reach  
 Creatively naming vegetable options  
 Bundling daily vegetable options into all grab and go meals  
 Training servers to politely prompt students to select and consume the daily vegetable 

options with their meal 
 Placing white milk in front of other beverages in all coolers 
 Highlighting alternative entrée options (e.g., salad bar, yogurt parfaits, etc.) on signs within 

all service / dining areas 
 Creating a reimbursable meal in all service areas (e.g., salad bars, snack rooms, etc.) 
 Using student surveys and taste testing opportunities to inform menu development, dining 

space decor, and promotional ideas 
 Displaying student artwork in the service and/or dining areas 
 Marketing menu options through daily announcements  

 
The district has taken the following steps in commitment to increasing student access to nutritious, 
appealing meals:  
 

 Menus, with nutrition information, will be posted on the school website 
 A certified nutrition professional will review/create menus   
 Child nutrition professionals administer the district’s program  
 Special dietary needs will be accommodated  
 Students will have at least 10 minutes to eat breakfast and at least 20 minutes to eat lunch (from the 

time they are seated with their meal)  
 Students are served lunch at a reasonable time of day  
 Families will be informed about available child nutrition programs  
 

Qualifications and Training 
 
All school nutrition employees will meet or exceed USDA hiring and annual continuing education/training 
requirements. 
 
Water 
 
To promote hydration, free, safe, unflavored drinking water will be available to all students throughout the school day, 
including during mealtimes.  Students may also bring and carry approved water bottles – filled only with water – 
throughout the day. 
 
Competitive Foods and Beverages 
 
Foods and beverages sold during the school day apart from the school meal programs (competitive items) will, at a 
minimum, meet the USDA Smart Snacks in School standards.   
 
Competitive items at celebrations and parties are not required to meet USDA Smart Snacks in School standards, 
although the District Wellness Officer is responsible for annually disseminating healthy and non-food party ideas to 
teachers, who will provide this information to parents who are bringing classroom snacks. 
 

293293



No food or beverage will be used as a reward or withheld as a punishment, unless specified in a qualified student’s 
IEP. 
 
The district will provide healthy food options for a variety of dietary needs at all meetings when food is provided. 
 
Fundraising 
 
Competitive items may be sold during the school day as a fundraiser as long as those items meet USDA Smart Snacks 
in School standards. 
 
Any site wishing to conduct fundraisers which are exempt from the Smart Snacks in School standards must follow the 
procedures and standards established by the Oklahoma State Department of Education.  This includes designating a 
contact person to oversee and document the exempt fundraisers. 
 
No exempt fundraiser may continue for more than fourteen (14) days or be conducted while school meals or snacks 
are being served.  No more than thirty (30) exempt fundraisers may be held per site per semester.  For purposes of this 
policy, fundraisers include, but are not limited to activities such as vending machines, snack shops, student stores, etc. 
 
The site coordinator must maintain documentation related to all exempt fundraisers, including, but not limited to, the 
organization, activity, class, or group benefitting from the fundraiser, as well as the dates of the fundraiser.  
 
The District Wellness Officer will annually provide staff and PTA representatives a list of healthy fundraising ideas. 
 
The district encourages schools to utilize fundraisers which promote physical activity (e.g. walk-a-thons, jump rope 
for heart, fun runs). 
 
Health and Nutrition Education 
 
Good nutrition will be encouraged throughout the school day using evidence-based techniques, including creative 
marketing for nutritious food choices.  This will create a food environment which encourages healthy eating and 
participation in school meal programs.  Wellness committee employees and child nutrition workers will regularly 
consult federal and state resources for current tips and resources to implement these requirements. 
 
All health education teachers will provide opportunities for students to practice or rehearse skills taught in their 
curricula. 

 
Physical Activity 
 
The district’s physical activities include PE classes, recess, and afterschool activities.  Physical activity, including 
recess, will not be withheld as a punishment.  This does not include participation in extracurricular activities which 
are privilege based. The district will maintain safe and appropriate grounds and facilities to promote active students. 
 
Physical Education Classes 
 
All district students, except those excused due to medical necessity, will participate in age-appropriate, sequential PE 
classes as required by state and federal curriculum standards. 
 
All district elementary students will participate in 90-149 minutes of physical education per week throughout the 
school year. 
 
During PE class, students must be moderately to vigorously active for at least half of the class time during most or all 
PE class sessions. 

294294



 
A health unit will be taught in PE classes at each site.  The curriculum for this unit will include nutrition, physical 
activity and general health information. 
 
All PE classes are taught by teachers who are certified to teach PE. 
 
 
 
 
 
Recess (Elementary School Students) 
 
All elementary sites will offer at least twenty (20) minutes of recess every school day, except when early dismissal or 
similar scheduling requirements make this impractical.  Recess is separate from PE classes. 
 
Physical Activity in the Classroom 
 
To increase attention to learning and to promote wellness, all students will be provided with brief, periodic activity 
breaks for stretching when possible. 
 

295295



Board of Education Personnel Reports
Employment Request

Replacing
Hrs Per 

Day
Pay 

Grade
First 

Work DayTeaching AssignmentSiteName

Classification Certified

Copeland, Rachel High School English 08/15/17 6 Patricia Johnson

Crumpley, Amanda Central 1st Grade 08/15/17 6 Emily Avila

Dablemont, Alexan Junior High 7th/8th Gr Math 08/15/17 6 Leslie Inman
Davis, Elizabeth Fogarty Sp Ed Mild/Mod 08/15/17 6 Laura Porter

Dearman, Kasey Junior High Creative Writing 08/15/17 6 Sean Case

Karns, Kyle Junior High Assistant Principal 07/18/17 8 Ryan Dayton
Lowe, Allison GUES 4th Grade 08/15/17 6 Debbie Longnecker

Nelson, Lauren High School English 08/15/17 6 Lauren Smith
Pound, Sarah GUES 4th - 6th Music 08/15/17 6 Cynthia Gustafson

Rudek, Rachel Fogarty 2nd Grade 08/15/17 6 DeAnna Allen

Sauser, Cory High School Computer Apps 08/15/17 6 Tonya Jones
Strahorn, James High School Algebra I 08/15/17 6 Alexander Tyler

Wood, Samantha Junior High Creative Writing 08/15/17 6 New Position

Replacing
Hrs Per 

Day
Pay 

Grade
First 

Work DayTeaching AssignmentSiteName

Classification Support

Johnston, Stacey Cotteral Site Secretary 08/01/17 4 7.5 Carol Doles
Pollard, Stephanie High School Principals Secretary 08/01/17 4 7.5 Kary Jarred

Sanchez, Linda GUES Sp Path Assistant 08/15/17 7.5 Anna D. Frederick

Stanford, Maggie Cotteral Custodian 06/12/17 3 8 Daniel Dellenbaugh
Williams, Shelly High School Custodian 06/12/17 3 8 Darroll Howard

FMLA Request
Support: 0

Certified: 1

Transfer of Position Report

Classification Certified

Name Transfered  From Transfered To Replacing Tran sfer Date
Alexander, Jamie 2nd Grade Interventionist Traci Hartley 8/15/2017
Mick, Jeri Library Media Jr High 3rd Grade Megan Breshears 8/15/2017
Palmer, Jessica Sp Ed Mild/Mod HS Sp Ed Mild/Mod GUES Nohemy Tautimer 8/15/2017
Porter, Laura Mild/Mod Fogarty Mild/Mod HS Jessica Palmer 8/15/2017
Ritter, Patsy 3rd GR Fogarty 5th Gr GUES Mallory Delaney 8/15/2017

Classification Support

Name Transfered  From Transfered To Replacing Tran sfer Date
Bowie, Anthony ISS Para GUES Sp Ed Para HS Eric Svare 8/15/2017
Olson, Elizabeth Sp Ed Para Cotteral Sp Ed Para Central N/A 8/15/2017
Sweeney, Regina Sp Ed Para GUES Sp Ed Para Fogarty N/A 8/15/2017

6/7/2017

296296



Board of Education Personnel Reports

Separation of Employment
Classification Certified

Name Site Teaching Assignment Reason for Separation Effective Date
Avila, Emily Central 1st Grade 5/23/2017Resigning
Breshears, Megan Fogarty Third Grade 5/23/2017Resigning
Curfman, Stephanie Fogarty 3rd Grade 5/23/2017Resigning
Frederick, Anna Central Speech Language Patholo 5/23/2017Resigning
Hodge, Stephen High School Geometry 5/23/2017Resigning
Inman, Leslie Junior High Math 8th Gr 5/23/2017Resigning
Johnson, Patricia High School English IV 5/23/2017Resigning
Jones, James High School Agriculture Education 6/30/2017Resigning
Tautimer, Nohemy GUES Sp Ed Mild/Mod 5/23/2017Resigning
Tyler, Alexander High School Algebra I 5/23/2017Resigning
Young, Kathleen Cotteral Kindergarten 5/23/2017Resigning

Classification Support

Name Site Teaching Assignment Reason for Separation Effective Date
Calvert, AshLi Junior High Cafeteria Worker 6.5 Hrs 5/23/2017Resigning
Cox, Mary Cotteral Sp Ed Paraprofessional 5/23/2017Resigning
Dellenbaugh, Daniel Cotteral Full Time Sub Custodian 5/12/2017Retiring
Howard, Darroll Junior High Custodian 5/19/2017Terminated

6/7/2017

297297



298298



299299



300300



301301



302302



303303



304304



305305



306306



307307



308308



309309



310310



311311



312312



313313



314314



315315



 
Guthrie Public Schools 

Property Committee Meeting 
June 5, 2017     5:00 p.m. 

 
Members present: Dr. Mike Simpson, Doug Ogle, Dennis Schulz, Michelle Chapple, Cody 
Thompson, Jennifer Bennett-Johnson, Terry Pennington, Sharon Watts, and Linda Skinner.  
 
Mr. Thompson spoke on the following items:  

  
Expenditure Reports: 

           -   Summarized the expenses for May   
  -   20 new Purchase Orders for May   
   
  

Completed Projects: 
  -   220 Work-Orders completed at Maintenance 
  -   67 Work-Orders completed at Transportation 
  -   Electrical repairs/upgrades throughout the District (5)  
  -   Plumbing repairs/upgrades throughout the District (30) 
  -   HVAC repairs/replacements throughout the District (22) 
  -   Made repairs to roof leaks at Central, Cotteral, and Fogarty 
  -   Setup for Cotteral and HS Graduations and Ground Breaking 
      Ceremony at Charter Oak ES 
  -   Removed 4 trees in front of Central ES 
  -   Repaired broken windows at Cotteral from hail damage 
  -   Safety meetings with maintenance and transportation employees 
  -   Installed new sump pump in Central ES basement 
     -   Repaired 2 exhaust fans in HS main gym 
  -   Removed rocks off GUES playground for safety reasons   
   
  

Projects in Progress: 
  -   Currently have 89 Maintenance Work-Orders in progress 
  -   Currently have 117 Transportation Work-Orders in progress 
  -   Outside wall repair to siding on Faver Athletic annex 
  -   Replacing air filters and cleaning coils at all sites 
  -   Water leak in the wrestling room shower area 
  -   Inspecting and replacing defective door closures at all sites 
  -   Beginning annual inspections of all buses to meet auditors requirements 
  -   Replacing water trough with drinking fountains 
  -   Continuing roof repairs at Cotteral, Faver, Fogarty, HS, and Jr. High gym 
  -   District HVAC, electrical, and plumbing repairs 
  -   Repairing chillers at Central ES and the HS 
  -   Equipping custodial staff for summer project work    
  -   Safety Training for all operations and building staff 
 
 
   

316316



   
 Future Projects: 

- Continue making repairs/upgrades to facilities and equipment 
recommended in the Performance Review Report 

- Painting parking lots and curbs at the HS, GUES, and Bus lot 
- Sidewalk repairs to north building area at the High School 
- Continue to make repairs to HVAC units at all sites 
- Roof repairs at Cotteral, Fogarty, and the JH gym 
- Floor upgrades in classrooms at the HS, Bus Drivers Room, 

Central ES south halls and Fogarty office area and north portable 
- Sidewalk and curb facelifts where they have dropped below grade 
- Master lock/key system at Jr. High 
- Paint north hall walls and floors at Central ES 
- Landscaping around trees on Fogarty playground 
- Entry door replacement at Fogarty 
- Chiller replacement/repairs at GUES and HS 
- Repair/Replace the siding on Cotteral Quad  

 
 
 Bond Projects Discussion: 

Central ES 
- Ceiling repairs scheduled to be completed this week 
- Outside entry lights at the three new entry doors-changes being 

reviewed by architect 
    

        Charter Oak ES 
- Dirt work for the project is progressing 
- Installation of fence is underway 

 

317317



Guthrie Public Schools 

Finance Committee Meeting 

June 6, 2017 

4:00 P. M. 

 

In Attendance:  Dr. Mike Simpson, Dennis Schulz, Michelle Chapple, Doug Ogle, Carmen Walters, Dee 

Benson, Eldona Woodruff, Angie Smedley, Janna Pierson, Gina Davis, Tina Smedley, Vicki Biggs and 

Michele Hamby. 

Mr. Schulz opened the meeting informing the committee the first items were routine financial reports 

and if they had questions they could contact him.   

Mr. Schulz spoke on the following: 

 Interest Rates 

The interest rates are still up. Farmers and Merchants Bank will watch the rates before 

offering an increase.  There is a possibility of us investing in T Bills and CD’s. 

 

Temporary Appropriations 

  

 Set up each year as a formality to give us the authority to spend while waiting for our 

 Estimate of Needs. 

 

Property/Liability/Fleet Auto Insurance Renewal 

 

 Oklahoma Schools Insurance Group will continue to provide this insurance to us.  The  

 Premium is up from last year. 

 

Workers’ Comp Insurance Renewal 

 

 Oklahoma School Assurance Group will continue to provide this insurance to us.  The   

 premium is reduced from last year. 

 

Clearwater Gas Agreement Renewal 

  

 This is a continuation of our current agreement, with no change in cost. 

 

Lease Purchase Agreement – LED Retrofit (Ratify) 

 

 This is a continuation of our current agreement that must be ratified yearly. 

 

 

318318



Municipal Finance Contract Renewal, 2017-2018 

 

  This is a continuation of our current agreement with no change in fee. 

 

 Approve Food Service Management Company Agreement 

 

  The Wellness Committee reviewed proposals and recommended to accept the proposal   

  from Sodexo. 

 

 Transportation Request – First Southern Baptist Church 

 

  This was a request to use our school busses to transport students to Falls Creek.  They  

  will reimburse the cost of mileage and drivers. 

 

 Transportation Request – Chamber of Commerce 

 

  This was a request to use our busses to transport Little Britches contestants and their  

  families to the Red Brick Nights event.  They will reimburse the cost of mileage and  

  drivers. 

 

 Wellness Policy Amendment, Pg. 4 – Exempt Fundraisers 

 

  This amendment will allow exemptions from the Smart Snacks in School standards as  

  long as a designated employee documents the exempt fundraisers.  

 

Dr. Simpson spoke on the following: 

 

 NorthChurch Lease Agreement at GUES 

 

  This is a continuation of our current agreement, with no change to times or cost. 

 

Ms. Walters spoke on the following: 

 

 Agreement with Willow Creek, Pre-K Program 

 

  This is a renewal of our current agreement, with no change to cost. 

 

 Agreement with Logan County Health Dept. School Nurse 

 

  This is a renewal of our current agreement for 2017-18. 

 

 ALCA Agreement 

 

  This is a renewal for comparison of student testing retrieval software. 

319319



Mr. Ogle spoke on the following: 

 

 Frontline Technologies, Time & Attendance Renewal 

 

  This is a continuation of our current agreement for our timeclock system to insure  

  proper guidelines for comp time and overtime are followed. 

 

 PeopleAdmin Agreement Renewal 

 

  This is a continuation of service for our TalentEd Recruit & Hire website service. 

 

Ms. Woodruff spoke on the following: 

 

 Agreement with Nikki Keck, Visual Impairment 

 

  Ms. Keck will provide has both Visual Impairment and Orientation and Mobility  

  Certification and will provide both of these services, saving the cost of hiring two  

  Individuals. 

 

 Agreement with Beth McLean, Occupational Therapy Services 

 

  This is a continuation to Ms. McLean’s current agreement for Occupational Therapy  

  Services, with no increase in hourly cost. 

 

 Agreement with Tina Ramey, Speech Therapy Services/ESY 

 

  This is renewal of contract to provide Speech Therapy services during the months of  

  June and July for the Extended School Year Service, with Tina Ramey as a new vendor. 

  

Mr. Benson spoke on the following: 

 

 Agreement with Reliance Communications – School Messenger 

 

  This is a renewal of service for our phone messenger service.  This service places our  

  Automated calls related to attendance, lunch account balances, snow days, etc. 

 

 Agreement with SOCS Renewal 

 

  This is a continuation of our agreement with SOCS to provide our website services. 

   

 

 

 

  

320320



Guthrie Public Schools 
Curriculum Committee Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2017 
5:00 p.m. 

 
In attendance: Dr. Simpson, Doug Ogle, Carmen Walters, Eldona Woodruff, Angie Smedley, 
Janna Pierson, Travis Sallee, and Gina Davis 
 
Discussion Items 
 
Ms. Walters 

• Renewal Agreement with Willow Creek Health Care, LLC for the Intergenerational Pre-K 
Classroom for the 2017-2018 School Year 
 

• Aurora Learning Community Association (ALCA) Agreement 
o The cost will be $4,760.00 which is a decrease from last year of $950.00 

 
• District Elementary Student Handbook for 2017-2018 School Year 

 
• Handbook Supplements for Cotteral, Central, Fogarty and GUES for the 2017-2018 

School Year 
 

Mr. Ogle 
• Junior High Student Handbook for 2017-2018 – pulled for July meeting 

 
• Cost of Printing Handbooks (thoughts about going online with them) 

 
• 2017-2018 Job Openings and Hires 

 
• Marzano Training Recap 

321321


	5-8-17 Board Minutes.pdf
	GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
	BOARD MINUTES

	Fundraiser Requestfinal.pdf
	fundraiser request board report final.pdf
	Sheet1


	Mowing bid tab 2017.pdf
	Sheet1




